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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

On behalf of the board, | would like to present the annual report of Hans Energy
Company Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year 2008.
AABRAREBRRERAGAREMBLAR(AEENELZZEZENF
T o




2008 marked as the most extraordinary year in a century as the financial tsunami
swept over the global economy. This global crisis hit the real economy in its wake,
leading to a sharp plunge in business margins and gradually slowed down the
commercial activities in the region we operate, the PRC. Since then, we saw
factories along the coastal line of south China areas were forced to close in an
unprecedented scale when the demand of goods they usually exported declined

coupled with the increasing operating costs.

The global economic outlook for the coming year very much relies on the speed
and ability of the recovery of the United States from its slump. Most important, it
depends on how the sliding property market and the credit crunch problems will
be tackled. Since the United States economy accounts for a very significant weight
in the global economies, the rest of the world will inevitably be affected. 2009 will

be a difficult year.

Despite the squeeze in demand in export which eventually affects the flow of
goods with the region, we are confident that the impact in regard to it will be
manageable to the Group. First of all, Chinese Government responded to the sliding
economy quickly by announcing the speeding up of the government spending in
many sectors and across the country to simulate the economy, coupled with looser
monetary policies to provide liquidity to the manufacturing and commercial side. It

is expected that China will recover earlier than the rest of the world. Fortunately,

we are operating in this region.
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Furthermore, the brand name established over the years due to the Group's privilege
to enter into the PRC oil and petrochemical product storage and logistics facilities
and services market in the early years. Our enthusiasm in providing professional
and quality services to customers has earned the loyalty from customers and won
the confidence and recognition from the peers over our service quality, which are
achieved through our persistent self-perfection, high regards to safety, environment
preservation and service integrity as our core values. We believe these most

invaluable intangible assets will carry the Group through this difficult period.

The drawbacks in the global economy however gave the Group opportunities to
reduce the construction costs for the projects we are carrying out. The economic
slow down cooled off the heat of raw material price rocketing during the second
half of 2008. The drop in prices in steel, cement, labour, etc will save the Group in

building the facilities.

Looking into the structure of our revenue sources, the most significant portion
comes from steady and stable storage income, which is much locked up with long
leases. With the benefit of hindsight, it proved to be a right decision in signing long
leases with renowned customers which will assure a strong income stream to the
Group, especially when the economic environment turns bad. This is very much a

competitive advantage of the Group among the peers in coming years.

Lastly, the significant drop of international oil prices will simulate the import of
product oils into China as it will be attractive to traders in terms of profitability.
Alternatively, the lower international oil price may render a favourable platform for
domestic oil pricing reform in China. It is thus expected that the flow of oils across

China may increase in this regard.
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The global economic downturn is set to make the year ahead a challenging one,
but the Group will keep on focusing our core business and continue to seek for
development opportunities and new source of business revenue. In Xiao Hu Island,
Panyu, we have successfully acquired the site to develop a warehousing and logistic
centre for solid chemicals to cope with the demand of such service. The construction
of the centre will be completed in 2009 to capture the opportunity of new safety
requirements in dangerous goods caretaking industry. The construction work of the
Dongguan port jetty has been completed and the tank farm will be completed in
2009. The Group wishes that all of the above projects can lay a solid foundation for
the Group's long-term development and enable the Group to embrace a promising

future.

On behalf of the board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude for the
continuing support of the shareholders and business partners to the Group over
the years, as well as the efforts and hard work of all directors, the management

and staff of the Group.

David An
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2009
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BEBNWN TN

OPERATION REVIEW

The operational results of the Group's core business of the oil and petrochemical
terminal located in Xiao Hu Island of Nasha, Panyu, Guangdong Province in the PRC

("XHIT") were as follows:

EX O

URFEEREEBEED/NEE 2 AH R AEIEE
(IMRAEEDAREBZZOER  HREXES
LU

Operational Statistics 2008 2007 Changes
EERHET —EENEF —_TTtF 21t
Number of vessels visited MERFEE

— foreign — 5N 225 264 -14.8%

— domestic — e 822 1,427 -42.4%
Number of trucks served to pick up cargoes ZWEY s EEEE 14,214 20,931 -32.1%
Number of drums filled EREE 42,628 32,993 29.2%
Transshipment volume (metric ton) EEHE(Q8)

- oils — M an 158,389 2,000 7819.4%

— petrochemicals —Aftm 194,083 186,315 4.2%
Port jetty throughput (metric ton) WA E (A6) 1,920,100 2,528,000 -24.0%
Tank farm throughput (metric ton) FrrERELE (QANE) 2,161,300 2,892,000 -25.3%

During the year, XHIT recorded 225 foreign tankers berthed for unloading cargoes
(2007: 264), port jetty throughput of 1,920,100 metric tons (2007: 2,528,000 metric
tons) and tank farm throughput of 2,161,300 metric tons (2007: 2,892,000 metric
tons). The reduction of number of foreign tankers berthed for unloading cargoes,
port jetty and tank farm throughput was attributable to the fact that international
oil price remained high most of the year until the fourth quarter and the global
financial crises since September 2008. However, the transshipment volume for the
oil and petrochemicals were increased that was arisen from the loosening up of the
import tax rebates to the domestic oil companies from the beginning of the second

quarter of 2008 and stimulated the importation of oil products.
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Revenue Breakdown

The major revenue items breakdown of the Group were as follows:
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2008 % 2007 %
(HK$'000) (HK$'000)
—EEN\E % —ETLF %
(F#&Rx) (F&x)
Terminal, storage and 558 M AP TE RS
transshipment services LA K 5 8 AR 7% 153,299 92.8 149,605 93.3
Port income ANE PN 11,867 7.2 10,681 6.7

Segment results of XHIT

The turnover from the provision of terminal storage and transshipment facilities
segment during the year ended 31 December 2008 was HK$153.3 million (2007:
HK$149.6 million), representing a rise of 2.5% from last year, whereas the segment
profit for the year was HK$101.7 million (2007: HK$103.4 million), representing a
decrease of 1.6%. The increase in turnover was mainly attributable to the increase
in volume of cargoes transhipped in XHIT port and the loosening up of import tax
rebates to the domestic oil companies from the beginning of the second quarter of
2008 as a result of stimulation of the importation of oil products. However, the drop
in flow of goods across the south China region in the fourth quarter coupled with

the increase in operating costs resulted in the decrease of segment profit.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, turnover from port income increased by
11.1% from HK$10.7 million to HK$11.9 million and the segment profit increased
from approximately HK$9.3 million to HK$11.1 million, representing an increase
of 19.4%. The increase in turnover and profit for this segment was attributable to
the increase in importation of oils due to the loosening up of import tax rebates to

domestic oil companies from the beginning of the second quarter of 2008.

OUTLOOK

The Group continued to focus its core business of providing specialized integrated
terminal, storage and logistics services for oil and liquid petrochemical products
in the PRC. In coping with the newly developed safety requirements in storing
dangerous goods, the Group is going into the solid chemical warehousing business.
We expect this project will bring in new revenue and contributions to our bottom

line.

PRALCEND BEEA

HE_ZZ)\F+_A=+T—HILEFE KRIEMH
W58 BT 17 DA R ) SR e 0 BP B & 3 R 1 53188
T(ZZTHF 15085 T) REF EF25% -
MAFEZDEHEFBLOEBST(ZTZTLF -
1.03EBTT) - BIEA1.6% - EXEBEAEN  £B
MR NRAEESARBEEH B ELINLE =
ZZN\FE_FHE  BRNARRRERTREE
A& RS T haED - A %@%f‘;iﬁﬁiﬁ
RERBD - I EEERAR LR - BHHHENT

Bt o

HE-_TT N\F+_A=1+—HBLFE  BOKA

LB ZEFER1,0708 BT INE, 1908 BT - 18RS

11.1% » M5 2 F BN E30E B LI INE, 1108 %

TC v SEIE /819.4% o Ity P B FE R KO R 0 -

THREZTTNFE_FFRBRBENARA KR
BEOMEESHMED -

RE

AEBBRETRRAZOER  EFEPEREMR
AmEREACEROIFE - FERYR —BILR
%o HEFHENERATFLERENE  AF
ErRHADRCERREER - KEEH - WLIHEB
PR AT AR - SR EES A E T TR -



10

Hans Energy Company Limited ;£ B8R AR QT
ANNUAL REPORT 2008 £ 3§

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERW RO

XHIT Liquid Terminal Business

The expansion to the existing site plan has been delayed as the land requisition
procedures in Xiao Hu Island required longer time than expected. The formal
procedures are undergoing in accordance with rules and regulations required.
The management has been pursuing constantly with the relevant departments

of the local government to complete the process.

XHIT Solid Warehousing Centre

In Xiao Hu Island, Panyu, we have successfully acquired a site to develop a
warehousing and logistic centre for solid chemicals to cope with the demand
of such service. According to the initial design, the warehouse will have
a floor area of 35,000 square metres. The construction of the centre will
be completed in 2009 to capture the business opportunity of new safety

requirements in dangerous goods caretaking industry in Pearl River Delta.

Dongzhou International Terminal project (“DZIT")

The construction of Dongguan port jetty has been completed and the operating
equipment is being installed. The tank farm construction is underway. It is
expected to complete all the works in this year. The costs of most construction
materials and components dropped significantly in the economic downturn,

giving rise to material cost savings for the project.

Taishan Crude Oil Terminal project (“TSOT")

Despite the PRC government has indicated its policy of encouraging the
involvement of private sector to participate in national oil reserves in
the country; detailed guidelines for execution have yet been issued. The
preparation works for the development of the TSOT have been started and
we shall apply with all relevant authorities for approval once the government

issues the official guidelines.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The operations of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 was declined as
compared with that of 2007. The gross margin was slightly decreased from 70.3%,
to 68.3%. The Group's turnover was HK$165.2 million (2007: HK$160.3 million),
representing an increase of 3.0%. EBIT and EBITDA for the year ended 31 December
2008 were HK$72.5 million (2007: HK$85.4 million) and HK$101.7 million (2007:
HK$112.3 million) respectively. The profit attributable to equity shareholders was
HK$56.4 million (2007: HK$64.0 million), representing a decrease of 11.9% due to
non-recurring costs of equity-settled share based payment expense and donations
for Sichuan emergency relief during the year. Apart from these, the PRC income tax
rate was increrased from 7.5% to 9%. Without these items, the profit attributable
to equity shareholders would have been improved from last year. The basic earnings
per share for the year were 1.51 Hong Kong cents (2007: 2.07 Hong Kong cents)
and the diluted earnings per share for the year were 1.51 Hong Kong cents (2007:
1.91 Hong Kong cents). The decreases of both basic and diluted earnings per share
were mainly attributable to the decrease of profit attributable to equity shareholders
and the higher effective number of common shares with regard to the conversion of

convertible notes in July 2007.
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2008 2007 Changes
ZBENF ZEELF 24t
(HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(F#&x) (F&mL)
Turnover EEE 165,166 160,286 3.0%
Gross profit =75 112,774 112,691 0.1%
Earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT") Br BRI AT EFI([EBIT]) 72,490 85,437 -15.2%
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of AN AR R FE A g A 56,395 64,014 -11.9%
the Company
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation BRFIE -~ BE - 101,708 112,317 -9.4%
and amortization (“EBITDA") e RE AT AR
([EBITDA])
Gross margin ESYAES 68.3% 70.3%
Net profit margin RS 34.1% 39.9%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BREAREF (B 1.51 2.07 -27.1%
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) SREEEF (BW) 151 1.91 -20.9%

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Gearing

As at 31 December 2008, the Group's total cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$230.0 million (2007: HK$323.3 million). Most of the funds were
held in HK$, RMB and USS$.
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As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s current ratio was 1.37 (2007: 2.58). The
change in current ratio was mainly related to the funds utilised for the construction

of the Dongguan new terminal in the year.

The Group's gearing ratio of as at 31 December 2008 was 1.04 (2007: 1.06)
(defined as total liabilities to total equity). The change in gearing ratio was mainly
attributable to the draw down of the long-term banking facilities made available to

the Group during the year.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The current cash reserves and recurrent operating cash flow is sufficient for the
daily requirements for current operations. The banking facilities were backed by
collateralizing the receivables under the long-term lease already entered with
customer. Due attention will be paid to the capital and debt markets as well as the
latest developments of the Group in order to ensure the efficient use of financial

resources.

FINANCE COST

The Group had no interest on convertible notes during the year ended 31 December
2008 (2007: HK$7.1 million). The drop was attributable to the fact that the interest
bearing convertible notes were fully converted into the ordinary shares in July 2007.
Apart from this, the borrowing costs capitalized as construction in progress for
the year ended 31 December 2008 increased from HK$1.47 million to HK$16.43

million. Details are set out in note 5(a) to the financial statements.

TAXATION

The Group had no assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year.
On the other hand, GD (Panyu), the PRC subsidiary of the Group, is still subject to
PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the concession rate of 9% (normal tax rate is 18%)
for the year ended 31 December 2008. However, the tax relief of GD (Panyu) ended
at 31 December 2008. Under the new CIT Law, GD (Panyu) will be subject to the
transitional tax rate of 20%, 22%, 24% and 25% in 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012

onwards respectively. Details are set out in note 6 to the financial statements.
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGES
RATE AND RELATED HEDGE

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are held predominately in HK$, RMB
and US$. Operating outgoings incurred by the Group's subsidiary in the PRC are
mainly denominated in RMB, which usually receives revenue in RMB as well. The
management is of the opinion that the Group's exposure to foreign exchange
rate risks is not significant, and hedging by means of derivative instruments is

considered unnecessary.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

The Group's future non-cancellable operating lease receivables have been
collateralized to a bank for long-term banking facilities since 2007. Apart from this,

as at 31 December 2008, none of the assets of the Group was pledged.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2008, the Group had capital commitments amounted to
approximately HK$82 million in respect of constructions in progress, mainly
related to the unpaid contract sums in respect of contracts for the DZIT port jetty
construction, signed prior to the balance sheet date. The Group had also capital
expenditure not contracted for but approved by the board and not provided in the
financial statements in respect of terminal development and acquisition of storage

facilities amounted to approximately HK$390 million at 31 December 2008.

At 31 December 2008, the Group has no material contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had a workforce of approximately 260 people. Salaries of employees
are maintained at competitive level with reference to the relevant market and are

performance driven.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend any final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2008 (2007: HKS$Nil).
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERGNEEAERFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. David An, aged 49, joined the Company as Chairman and Executive Director in
July 2002. He has many years of experience in China business particularly in the
areas of trading petroleum products and petrochemicals, properties investments

and developments in China.

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas, aged 49, joined the Company as Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary in 2005 and was appointed as Executive Director
of the Company in April 2006. Mr. Fung is an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has 25 years of experience in
financial management for multinational corporations and listed companies and has

worked in major international accounting firms.

Ms. Liu Zhijun, aged 41, was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in
April 2006. Ms. Liu is also the Deputy Chairlady and Chief Financial Controller of
Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Company Limited (“GDPC”), GD (Panyu) and 52 M Ed
2. She joined GDPC in 1997. Prior to that, she had worked in various government
departments and large State-owned enterprises, including the Audit Office of
Guangdong Province, China Travel Service (Holdings) Hong Kong Limited, etc. She
has more than 19 years of experience in financial management. Ms. Liu graduated
from Zhongshan University in 1989 with a Bachelor's degree in Economics. Ms. Liu
also holds the auditor qualification certificate of speciality and technology issued
by the Ministry of Personnel and National Audit Office of the People's Republic of
China.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 43, was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in
August 2007. He joined the Company as Chief Operating Officer, China in 2006.
Mr. Zhang graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics and
obtained the qualification of engineer. Mr. Zhang has many years of experience in
petrochemical industry. He has expertise in petrochemical specialized technology
and is familiar with financial accounting policy and system in the PRC. Mr. Zhang
also has in-depth knowledge in large petrochemical project management. He had
served China Petrochemical Corporation and held various key positions such as the
chief financial officer of the Singapore branch, deputy general manager and chief

financial officer of the Hong Kong branch.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wai Keung, aged 52, joined the Company as Independent Non-Executive
Director in July 2002. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr. Li graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic and holds a Master's
degree in Business Administration from The University of East Asia. He is also a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li has held a number of positions with
companies including Sino Land Company Limited and Henderson Land Development
Company Limited. Mr. Li is now a director and financial controller of GDH Limited.
He was a director and the chief financial officer of Guangdong Investment Limited
until April 2008 and is now a non-executive director only of this company. Also, he is
an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited, the shares

of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Liu Jian, aged 55, joined the Company as Independent Non-Executive Director in
July 2002. Mr. Liu is currently the managing director of CITIC Securities International
Company Limited, Corprate Finance Department. Mr. Liu previously worked for China
state-owned enterprises including China Resources Holdings Company Limited and
Ministry of Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation, the PRC. He was also the
independent non-executive director of Long Far Pharmaceutical Holdings till 2006.
Mr. Liu has over 10 years of investment banking experience and over 19 years of
experience in China business management. He graduated from Jiaotong University,

Shanghai.

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony, aged 37, joined the Company as Independent Non-
Executive Director in May 2005. Mr. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant and works
as a director in a certified public accounting practice. He has extensive experience
in general assurance and business advisory services in both Hong Kong and the
PRC. Moreover, Mr. Chan has over 10 years of experience in public listings in Hong
Kong and Singapore, mergers and acquisition as well as corporate finance. He holds
a master degree in Business Administration from the Manchester Business School.
Mr. Chan is now the independent non-executive director of Honbridge Holdings
Limited and Wai Chun Mining Industry Group Company Limited (formerly named
as Nority International Group Limited), the shares of which are listed on the Hong

Kong Stock Exchange.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERGNEEAERFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Yi You, aged 59, is a director and deputy general manager of GD (Panyu).
Before he joined GD (Panyu) in 1992, Mr. Chen was a deputy factory manager for
a large petrochemical company in Guangzhou, the PRC. Mr. Chen has many years
of experience in the management of storage operations for oil and petrochemical

products.

Mr. Deng Zhi Gang, aged 35, is a director and deputy general manager of GD
(Panyu). Mr. Deng obtained his Master's degree in Business Administration from
University of San Francisco. He joined GD (Panyu) in 1996, and has many years
of experience in trading and marketing in the business of storage for oil and

petrochemical products.

Mr. Huang Ji Lin, aged 61, was redesignated as consultant of GD (Panyu) in 2009.
Before that, he was a director and deputy general manager of GD (Panyu). Mr.
Huang graduated from EE & #4% 24 in the PRC in 1960’s and obtained a
Certificate of Graduation in the Senior Advanced Course in Business Management
from Shenzhen University in 1994. Mr. Huang joined GD (Panyu) in 1992 and is
experienced in project management. Mr. Huang is also a mechanical engineer in
the PRC.

Mr. Li Xiao Hui, aged 40, joined GD (Panyu) in 1994. He is a director and general
manager of BMBIER. He has extensive knowledge and experience in technology
and operating management of oil and petrochemicals storage. He also holds
a master degree of corporate management. He is now fully responsible for the

management of the infrastructure and construction project in Dongguan.

Mr. Nie Yu Hua, aged 41, joined GD (Panyu) in 2006. He is a deputy financial
controller of GD (Panyu) and a director and a deputy financial controller of B/
¥3. He is an International Certified Internal Auditor, a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certificate Public Accountants and has professional accountant
qualification in PRC. He has over 15 years financial management experiences in
large state owned enterprises, and has worked as a senior project manager in a

famous accounting firm.
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The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business in compliance with the
principles and code provisions (“Code Provisions”) set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange")
(“Listing Rules”), except for deviations from Code Provision A.4.1 which is explained

below.

The current corporate governance practices of the Company will be reviewed and
updated in a timely manner in order to comply with the requirements of the Code

Provision.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the division of functions

reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans with a view
to enhance shareholder interests while the day-to-day operations of the Company

are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company, including:
approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of

directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board

procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate

circumstances at the Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company are
delegated to the Chief Executive and the senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned

officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive and the senior management

to discharge its responsibilities.
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Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience necessary for

independent decision making and fulfilling its business needs.
The Board of the Company comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. David An (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive)
Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas

Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman of Remuneration Committee and Member of Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee)

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman of Nomination Committee and Member of

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)
None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each independent
non-executive director of his independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive directors to
be independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the

Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of business and
financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to the Board. Through
active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving
potential conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all independent
non-executive directors make various contributions to the effective direction of the

Company.
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Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures for

the appointment and succession planning of directors.

Under Code Provision A.4.1, the non-executive directors should be appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election. Although the independent non-executive
directors do not have a specific term of appointment, all the existing directors of the

Company retire by rotation at least once every three years pursuant to Article 116.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she
has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the

Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and

professional development to directors whenever necessary.

Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Ten Board meetings were held during the year.

The individual attendance (either in person or through other electronic means
of communication) record of each director at the meetings of the Board, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee

during the year ended 31 December 2008 is set out below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of directorship

RESEHRRLE BETEBIRE

Nomination Remuneration Audit
Directors Board Committee = Committee = Committee
BEx Exg RAEZEEE FHEEE BEREES
Executive Directors HiTEE
David An (Chairman of the Board BE(EFgFER 10/10 N/AZ 38 AR 11 N/ANiE A
and Chief Executive) TS,
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas HEH 10/10 N/ATT 3 A N/AZT 3 A N/AZT 3 A
Liu Zhijun 2EE 10/10 N/AZT~ 3 F N/AAT i A N/AAT i A
Zhang Lei RE 9/10 N/AZ 33 A3 N/AiE A N/ATiE A
Independent Non-Executive Directors B ITESE
Li Wai Keung (Chairman of FER(FEEESEEE) 8/10 17 171 212
audit committee)
Liu Jian (Chairman of R (FHERETRE) 10/10 1/1 11 212
remuneration committee)
Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman of RIRE(FEEZE2F/E) 10/10 11 11 212
nomination committee)
Practices and Conduct of Meetings SRERKRTH
Notices of reqular Board meetings are served to all directors at least 14 days EFZEHEBRERIRNGRBTATNRZESE
before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice ~ 5 - FRHMEFEFEREZEGEH - —REE
i

is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable ZIERZEFENXHARFEMEA TEEAEE
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting or  #} ' AR EEEEER AL EEFRBTA =K
committee meeting to keep the directors apprised of the latest developments and B FEE @ MESEFHNBARASHER LY
financial position of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. 75tk + WiBHE SIELAIERTE - EESRTES
The Board and each director also have separate and independent access to the ~ MAFRZE - IMAEARE I EESRITHAE -

senior executives whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board meetings ~ARIWEEERBEZEESTBENREZEEEHE LN
and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to directors for A RRTFZEFGHLE - R CHER —REES
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final versionisopen ~EHFLEREZ A BB ANESERN - LKEE
for directors’ inspection. R mERAAIHESEA RS -



According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves a
conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a director, will be considered
and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The Company's
Articles of Association also contain provisions requiring directors to abstain from
voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions

in which such directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that roles of Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same

individual.

The Company supports the division of responsibility to ensure the balance of power
and authority. However, in view of the fact that the Group's core business is carried
out singularly by its subsidiary, GD (Panyu), and the fact that the Chief Operating
Officer, China (de facto Chief Executive), who managed the core business, is a
separate person, the Board consider there is no necessity to a separate Chief

Executive at the Group level.

The Board has full confidence in Mr. David An and believes that his appointment
of the posts of chairman and chief executive is beneficial to the business prospects

of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company'’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the Company's website and are available to shareholders upon

request.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional

advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expenses.

Nomination Committee

All the three independent non-executive directors are the members of the
Nomination Committee and Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony is the chairman of the

committee.
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of directors, and assessment of the independence of the

independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and recommending
candidates for directorships by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
Company's needs and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An
external recruitment agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and

selection process when necessary.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 31 December 2008 to
ensure that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate

to meet the requirements of the business of the Company.

On 27 March 2008, the Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment
of Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas, Mr. Zhang Lei and Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony
standing for re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 8
May 2008.

Remuneration Committee

The Chairman of the Board and the three independent non-executive directors are
the members of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Liu Jian is the chairman of

the committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of the executive directors and the senior executives. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures
for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance of the

individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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The Remuneration Committee is to review the remuneration policy and structure
and determine the annual remuneration packages of the executive directors and
the senior executives and other related matters. The Human Resources Department
is responsible for collection and administration of the human resources data and
making recommendations to the remuneration committee for consideration. The
Remuneration Committee consults the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive of the
Company about these recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and

remuneration packages.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee convened one meeting for approval
and recommendation of proposal for adoption of the share option offer on 6 May
2008.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive directors
(including two independent non-executive director who possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise)
and Mr. Li Wai Keung is the chairman of the committee. None of the members of the

Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@)  To review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant

or unusual items before submission to the Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to the
work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement, and
make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and

removal of external auditors.

() To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial

reporting system, and risk management system and associated procedures.

(d) To review the effectiveness of the Company's internal control measures,
including the functions of account and financial reporting, reviewing the
adequacy of the Group's human resources, qualifications and experiences of

staffs, training they received and the relevant budget.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are updated from time to time and
consistent with the terms set out in the Code Provision. The Audit Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to

independent professional advice if considers necessary.

Hans Energy Company Limited ZEg/RER DT
ANNUAL REPORT 2008 £ 3§

Corporate Governance Report

FENNE

TEERRE

FNEZE SR ERMFMBELERE  AREEHR
TEFELSRTRABZEFHEN L EHE
EH - ANERMBABREREEANEREE -
RFNEZESFEHERERAREE - FHEES
EJEEZX*EF%%?MBZ%& RN R HMEN 2 ERE
CRERARDRERE HITBERCER

FR-FHEESRRT —RgHE R-ZETN\F
TAN BRI B O 2 R TR AR
BR

EREES

EREEGR=EBUINTES(BENEAGE
EEEERN SRR B EREENR BT
FEMITEREK MEBREERZEGER - &F
“ZBEKEBMIFANRREINEZHE 2 AIES
A o

ENZEGZIEREBETIIRIE

(@) BHHBHRELBEARZEETAMEASAF
BEE RREREEE -

(b)  REIMNERBEETZ TIE - HREREZBE
R IRET B AR ERAD 2 BAR - WL ERE - B
REHSNER Bz EE > MESSRHERS
B8

(0 WHARRBMBEHREZGMEREIE XK
HERFEERAREN -

(d) BEAARRAAMEEEE - RIESTRYBE
W2BEREBAY  BAREBANER - 8
TER BBRMAEEINABRAERS
%) o

ERZEGZRERES TREN - ATE TR
NFAEZIGER -  BREEGRRGRRERARBT
HBE YARRBRETERHABIZEER -

23



24

Hans Energy Company Limited ;£ 285 RGR 2 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2008 £ 3§

Corporate Governance Report
DEERRE

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December 2008
to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting, internal control and

compliance procedures.

There is no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast

significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as going concern.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2008.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting terms than
the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive

information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the

employees was noted by the Company.

Responsibilities inrespect of the Financial Statements
and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory

requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements

of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2008.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Report of the Auditors”

on page 36 to 37.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2008 was disclosed

on page 69.
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Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control system
to safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets, and reviewing the

effectiveness of such on an annual basis.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with defined lines
of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and authority to the

senior management.

The Group's internal control framework, covering all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls is established. The internal control

framework also provides for identification and management of risk.

The management is accountable to the Board for operating and monitoring the
system of internal control and for providing assurance to the Board that it has done
so. The Board forms its own view on effectiveness after due and careful enquiry

based on the information and assurances provided to it.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on resolutions
at shareholders’ meetings are contained in the Company’s Articles of Association.
Details of such rights and procedures are included in all circulars to shareholders
convening shareholders’ meetings and will be explained during the proceedings of
meetings. Upon the implementation of the amendments of the Listing Rules with
effect from 1 January 2009, all resolutions proposed at the shareholders’ meetings
will be voted by poll. The poll voting results will be posted on the websites of the

Stock Exchange and the Company after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.

The shareholders’ meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of the Board
as well as chairmen of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee, or in their absence, other members of the respective committees,
and where applicable, the independent Board committee, are available to answer

questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial

issue, including the election of individual directors.
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The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company's
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely

manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a website at
www.hansenergy.com, where extensive information and updates on the Company's
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance

practices and other information are posted.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the audited

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its

principal subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set out in the

consolidated income statement on page 38.

Taking into account of tremendous ongoing capital commitment of the Group for
those under going construction works, the directors do not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil). However, the
Board of Directors will determine dividend distribution policies once the Group has
secured long-term stable income by successfully entering into long-term leases with

our customers during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details in movement in share capital of the Company are set out in note 26 to the

financial statements.

RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from reserves of the
Company and of the Group during the year are set out on the Consolidated

Statement of Changes in Equity and in note 27 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2008, the Company's reserve available for distribution amounted
to 682 million (2007: HK$691 million).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements of fixed assets during the year are set out in note 12 to the

financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report

were:
Executive directors

David An (Chairman)
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
Liu Zhijun

Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive directors

Li Wai Keung
Liu Jian
Chan Chun Wai, Tony

Mr. David An, Ms. Liu Zhijun and Mr. Li Wai Keung shall retire by rotation and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting

pursuant to Article 116.

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive directors is the period

up to his retirement as required by the Company’s Articles of Association.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2008, the interest and short positions of directors and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") which have been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)

set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of shares
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Approximate percentage
to the issued share capital

of the Company

ERRE S BITRA
RHEE ZERNBEDE
Name of director Nature of interest Long position Short position Long position Short position
EEpE BEME B KB HE KR
Mr. David An B2 5E4*  Corporate’ A & 2,548,203,980 Nil 42 68.27% Nil £
(Noteff17#1)
PersonalfiE A 178,006,000 Nil f 4.77% Nilfe

Notes:

1. The shares are held directly as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise Investments Ltd
("Extreme Wise") and 2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals, both of which
are wholly-owned by Mr. David An. By virtue of SFO, Mr. David An is deemed to have
corporate interest in the 2,548,203,980 shares.

* Mr. David An, being a director of the Company, is also acting as the Chief Executive of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which had to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to

the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme detailed in note 25 to the financial statements,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debts securities (including debentures) of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the directors, their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the

Company, or had exercised any such rights.
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There were no transactions which were required to be disclosed as connected

transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate governance. The Company’s
corporate governance practices are based on the Principles and the Code Provisions
as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules. The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the Code Provisions.
Throughout the year 2008, the Company has complied with the Code Provisions as

set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 17 to 26.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2008, shareholders (other than directors of the Company) who had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept

by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of shares
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Approximate percentage
to the issued share capital

of the Company

ERDBEBTRA
RBEE ZBABEDL
Name of shareholders Long position Short position Long position Short position
EEpE HE RE "R KB
Mr. David An (Note 1) R EMZET) 2,726,209,980 Nil & 73.04% Nil %
Vand Petro-Chemicals Vand Petro-Chemicals 2,338,430,000 Nil 4 62.65% Nilfe
(Note 1) (Hiz1)
Dubai World Corportion Dubai World Corportion 370,000,000 Nil 4 9.91% Nil4&
(Note 2) (Kta£2)
Extreme Wise (Note 1) Extreme Wise (#75%1) 209,773,980 Nil&z 5.62% Nilf®



Note:

1. The shares are held directly as to 178,006,000 shares by Mr. David An personally, as
to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise and 2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-
Chemicals, both companies being wholly-owned by Mr. David An. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. David An is deemed to be interested in the 2,726,209,980 shares. Mr. David An is a
director of Extreme Wise, Vand Petro-Chemicals and the Company.

2. The Shares are held directly by Pony HK World, indirectly wholly-owned by Dubai World
Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any persons (other
than directors of the Company) who, as at 31 December 2008, had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 16 December 2002, the Company
adopted a share option scheme (the “scheme”) for the purpose of enabling the
Company to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract resources that
are available to the Group and to provide the Company with a means of giving
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to
such persons who contribute or may bring benefit to the Group. The scheme will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from adoption of such scheme and will

expire on 15 December 2012.

Under the scheme, the board of directors of the Company (the “directors”) may at
their discretion grant options to (i) any director of the Company or any company in
which the Company holds an equity interest; or (i) any employee of the Company
or any company in which the Company owns any equity interest; (iii) any consultant,
agent, business affiliate, professional and other advisor, business partner, joint
venture partner, strategic partner, or any supplier or provider of goods or services
to the Company or any subsidiaries of the Company as may be determined by
the directors from time to time to subscribe for the shares of the Company (the

“shares”).
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Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of grant, upon payment
of $1 per option. The maximum number of shares in respect to which options may
be granted under the scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company on the date of adopting the scheme. The limit may be refreshed at
any time provided that the new limit must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the shareholders' approval
in general meeting. However, the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
scheme and any other scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless
approval of the shareholders of the Company has been obtained in accordance
with the Listing Rules. Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors in excess of issued share capital of the Company or with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the shareholders

of the Company.

Options may be exercised at any time from date of grant of the share option to the
10th anniversary of the date of grant as may be determined by the directors. The
exercise price is determined by the directors, and will not be less than the higher of
the closing price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
on the date of the grant of the options and the average closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of the grant of the options.

On 7 May 2008, the Board approved to grant options in respect of 72,400,000
ordinary shares to the Company's directors and senior management under the
scheme. Details of the share options granted are set out in note 25 to the financial

statements.
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Information in relation to share options granted to the directors disclosed in  RIEETRBIFMAKEFERBER HGERNEH

accordance with the Listing Rules was as follows: LU
Number of
share options
granted during
the year
Exercise and outstanding at
price per 31/12/2008
Period share FARHRRA
during which =154 —EENEF
share options TEE +=A=+-—8
Eligible person Date of grant are exercisable HK$ i RITHE
AEEAT RHAH BRI BT BREZHE
(DIMIYYYY) (DIMIYYYY)
(R/R/%F) (R/R/H)
Executive Directors
HITEF
Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas 5B #950 4 7/5/2008 7/5/12008 - 7/5/2011 0.5 8,500,000
Ms. Liu Zhijun 25T 2+ 7/5/2008 7/5/2008 — 7/5/2011 0.5 8,500,000
Mr. Zhang Lei SR & 5t 4 7/5/2008 7/5/12008 - 7/5/2011 0.5 8,500,000
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYHRTEE
Mr. Li Wai Keung ZF {2 38 5t 4 7/5/2008 7/5/12008 - 7/5/2011 0.5 200,000
Mr. Liu Jian 22 55 4 7/5/2008 7/5/2008 - 7/5/2011 0.5 200,000
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony FR¥R(E 55 & 7/5/2008 7/5/12008 - 7/5/2011 0.5 200,000
26,100,000
Employees & 5 7/5/2008 7/5/12008 - 7/5/2011 0.5 46,300,000

72,400,000
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest
customers comprised approximately 73.4% of the Group's total sales and the sales
attributable to the Group's largest customer were approximately 55.5% of the
Group's total sales. The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers comprised approximately 71.3% of the Group's total purchases and the
purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier were approximately 49.0% of

the Group's total purchases.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
which, to the knowledge of the directors, owned more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital had any interest in the share capital of any of the five largest

customers or suppliers of the Group.

BORROWINGS

Details of movements in the Group's bank loans during the year are set out in note

22 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles of
Association although there is no restriction against such rights under the laws in

the Cayman Islands.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had a workforce of 260 employees, 244 of
which worked for the terminals. Every year, the Group devises a budget which states
total salary and bonus plan for the year to encourage the Group's employees to
contribute their best efforts and to make maximum economic benefits to the Group.
In accordance with the relevant government regulations in the PRC, the Group is
required to cover social insurance, including but not limited to retirement, medical,
workman compensation and unemployment insurance as well as housing fund for
every qualified employee in the PRC. With these insurance policies and staff benefits,

the Group hopes to provide a reasonable welfare for each qualified employee.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

For the year ended 31 December 2008, based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company

has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2008, there were no material contingent liabilities in respect of

outstanding litigation or legal proceedings that need to be disclosed.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at

the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
David An

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR CTE: 5

ISRIVIG

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hans Energy Company
Limited (the "Company”) set out on pages 38 to 111, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well

as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and of
the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FT\F+-A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETIIT)

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Note $'000 $'000
HtaE T Tt
Turnover =E =0 3 165,166 160,286
Cost of sales SHE KA (52,392) (47,595)
Gross profit EF 112,774 112,691
Other net income Hith 25 558 4 3,851 5,226
Administrative expenses THER (44,135) (32,480)
Profit from operations KRR 72,490 85,437
Finance costs R ID TN 5(a) = (7,135)
Profit before taxation BR %1 AT 7 5 72,490 78,302
Income tax FTiS®t 6(a) (8,972) (6,986)
Profit for the year FRER 63,518 71,316
Attributable to: 1L
Equity shareholders of the Company AR ERRER 56,395 64,014
Minority interests DB R s 7,123 7,302
Profit for the year FREF 63,518 71,316
Earnings per share BRER 10
— basic —HK 1.51 centsAll 2.07 centsflll
— diluted — 858 1.51 centsfll 1.91 centsfll|

The notes on pages 46 to 111 form part of these financial statements.

HNF6EE 1B Z M REK U S B HRK 2 —
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™ AR
meB

EREX

at 31 December 2008
R-FEENF+=-FA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(#TIT)
2008 2007
—EENE —EBTLF
Note $'000 $'000
Hiat Fr Tt
Non-current assets IERENEE
Fixed assets BE&E 12(a)
— Property, plant and equipment -M% - WEREE 280,834 290,689
— Construction in progress -EETRE 12(c) 509,716 249,196
— Interests in land held for own use - BB EHERFE
under operating leases B Az TRz 12(d) 21,389 21,350
Prepayments for acquisition of L2 B -+ 55 P A
land use rights Z TR RRIE 14 25,695 =
Prepayments for construction costs BERK AN 7B RIE 14,828 11,504
Intangible assets EIAE 13 3,380 1,979
855,842 574,718
Current assets REEE
Interests in land held for own use RIFKEHEREAR
under operating leases 2 iR 12(d) 1,500 1,619
Inventories — consumable parts FE - HfESR 3,193 2,679
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H M pE IR 16 7,364 13,491
Tax recoverable SEENE 5 - 176
Cash and cash equivalents B RIS FEHEIER 17 230,031 323,284
242,088 341,249
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals HE b IB RETRE 19 79,381 39,727
Deferred revenue FEIEW 2= 20 95,471 91,085
Amount due to a related company FER —REE R RIRIE 21 - 1,525
Current taxation NERFHE TR 2,125 =
176,977 132,337
Netcurrentassets = ‘*BEEFE 61 208912
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTREBEE 920,953 783,630
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SEEERER

at 31 December 2008
R_FENF+=-F=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETIIT)

2008 2007
—EENF —EBTLF
Note $'000 $'000
Bt et Tr T
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Deferred revenue IR E W o 20 34,318 118,509
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBEE 23 7,803 6,861
Bank loans HRITER 22 340,176 213,584
382,297 338,954
Net assets EEFE 538,656 444,676
Capital and reserves EXRf#E
Share capital [N 26 373,264 373,264
Reserves ] 125,101 40,272
Total equity attributable to equity RATRE
shareholders of the Company bR 498,365 413,536
Minority interests DYHRRERSE 40,291 31,140
Total equity ks 538,656 444,676

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2009. R-ZBEZNF=ZA=tHEEFSRHERERE

g -

David An Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
HE BEE

Chairman Executive Director
FE HITEF

REAER 1N B ZMEREK SR B ]RERZ—

o

The notes on pages 46 to 111 form part of these financial statements.

e

9



Hans Energy Company Limited ;£ 28R GR A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2008 3§

Balance Sheet
BEEBEX

at 31 December 2008
RZZEENFF+ZA=1+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(#TIT)

2008 2007
—EENF —EBTLF
Note $'000 $'000
HtaE T Tt

Non-current assets IERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RE 12(e) 214 343
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZKE 15 1,054,330 1,054,303
1,054,544 1,054,646

Current assets REEE
Other receivables A fE W GRIE 16 358 2
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEER 17 7,513 11,141
7,871 11,143
Current liabilities REEE

Other payables H At FE T FRIE 1,175 1,084
Net current assets REBEEFE 6,696 10,059
Net assets EERE 1,061,240 1,064,705

Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital &N 26 373,264 373,264
Reserves HiE 27 687,976 691,441
Total equity R 1,061,240 1,064,705

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2009.

RZBENF=ZA=+HEESTSHERRE

David An
B
Chairman

E]

The notes on pages 46 to 111 form part of these financial statements.

il

s

o

Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
Executive Director

HITEF

HNFEE 1B ZHERBK U EM B HREKZ —

B e
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Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity

mEREZBR

for the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-—TENFF+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETIIT)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KAERREGRS
PRC  Share- based  Accumulated
statutory ~ compensation profits/ Minority
Share Share Special ~ Translation Capital reserve reserve (losses) interests Total
apital  premium feserve feserve reserve E Bt BiEd/ Total L% equity
R&  REEE  GHEE  ENRE  E4EE  HEEE  EMBRE  (FR) &R RREE L
(ot foel)  foeld)  foel)  oeE) k()
/| /3/1 /J /’J )
§000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §100 §000 §000 000 000 §000
T S i i i i i i i r r
At 1 lanuary 2007 K=FRtE-A-A U105 91 (251.48) 139 41,85 31,04 - (546,380) (26,907) B8 (3,789)
Bchange adjusment Efag - - - - - - - - - 215 2115
Bxchange diferences BEFAIMIE
atsg from rangaion FhEH =R
of operatons outsde
Hong Kong = = = 5113 = = = = IS = IIE
Shares repuchased fote ) BERG W)
-paralieand pemimpad — ~BERERAE (1.51) (6,465 - - - - - - (1.916) - (1916
Shaesisswedypon erecisel — ETETARZEMES
converthle notes pdi'i)} 127,000 17408 = = (#1.856) = = = 3911 = 39,1
Trngferto PRC statutoy ERTOETRE
TESIVeS - - - - - 3 - ) - - -
Prfitforthe year ERgH = - - - - - - 64014 64014 130 71316
Dividend to minory shareholders - B RE 2 kS = = = = = = = = = (1,92 (1,905)
At 31 December 2007 NERLETZA=T-H 3BM nan (251428) 30,565 = 31947 = (483289) 41353 31140 44676
At 1 January 2008 R-ZENE-A-A 373,264 no4n (251428) 30,565 = 31947 = (483289) 41353 31140 44676
Bxchange adjusment ERAE - - - - - - - - - 208 208
Buchange dferences BEERIME
a1sng fom tenation FHENER
ofoperatons outsde
Hong Kong = = = 25 = = = = 15 = 025
fuyseled sharedased MEREEZRARA
transaction - - - - - - 6,182 - 6,182 - 6,182
Prfitforthe ear Emi] - - - - - - - %3% %,3% 718 6,518
At 31 December 2008 RZBENETZAZT-R BB 110411 (251428) 54817 = 31947 6,162 (426,8%) 498,365 09 538,656




Notes:

The application of the share premium account is governed by the Companies Law (a)

(Revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The special reserve arose from the reverse acquisition in December 2004.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the (c)
translation of the financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The reserve is

dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1(s).

The capital reserve comprises the value of the unexercised equity component of (d)
convertible notes issued by the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting

policy adopted for convertible notes in note 1(k).

According to the articles of association and board resolution of Guangdong (Panyu) (e)
Petrochemical Storage & Transportation Limited (“GD(Panyu)”), an amount not more
than 10% of the profit before taxation may be transferred to a PRC statutory reserve at

the discretion of GD (Panyu)’s directors.

As stated in note 26, during 2007, the Company repurchased its own ordinary shares ()
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The repurchased share were cancelled
and accordingly the issued capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of these shares. The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of $6,465,000 was
charged to share premium. Particulars of the shares repurchased during 2007 are as

Hans Energy Company Limited ;£ B AERERA A
ANNUAL REPORT 2008 3§

Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity
nV-ﬁAHX* ?‘::?‘Ej]%%

for the year ended 31 December 2008
ENFF+—A=1—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETIT)

BE—FZ

fitat
B i (B BE 2 BB R B 8 BB A FUE (B ET) M
ﬁo

() HHFREEE-_ZTNFE+—AZRKEMELE

ERFEEHEFERREFEIMMEE XN B RE

ALK A EN Z5 o ZREEIHREME )M
BRERFEE
BN B SRR IR BT AR 1 (k) ATt 5 RT H AR SRR AT BR 4

B & R ERER M R A A B AT M AR R E B RAT
EEB D KRS AV (E(E ©

REEE(ER) AR IHENEERAT( S
(B DO ARERENSEARE ek 85 B
B)E FWE G H AR T RB0%E S EAE
B -

BAK FE6FTI C R=ZTTLFR - AR BREERE
BERZHERAREEEAS 2 LEAL - BEERK
HEFHEHE  ARREBTRANCIKZERGZ
EE AR D o BERIAR % FT 2 1 2 4 {86,465,0007T
ERBEHRERTNR - R LEABEERKRND

follows: BT

Number Highest Lowest

of shares price paid price paid
repurchased per share per share Aggregate
Month/year fBE gREHN sREH price paid
F,/A iigvil 4= BREES BRIEER BENEHE
$ $ $'000
JT yin T
January 2007 4,174,000 0.50 0.50 2,129
February 2007 10,334,000 0.55 0.52 5,787
14,508,000 7,916

Share-based compensation reserve represents value of employee services in respect of (9)

share options granted under the share option scheme as set out in note 25.

P £ 57 A 1k s 45 P RE 25 P R AR PR A M AT B IR K B
B rErRRARY B B RIS E(E -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

ll‘m/\Iﬁlﬁ/}ILE%

for the year ended 31 December 2008
I —FTENFF+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B TIT)
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLF
Note $'000 $'000
Kt Fr T
Operating activities R
Profit before taxation R 75 AT v ) 72,490 78,302
Adjustments for: EYEE T 5%
— Interest income — A B A 4 (1,711) (3,683)
— Finance costs — R AN 5(a) - 7,135
— Depreciation and amortisation —ITE Y 5(c) 29,218 26,880
— Equity settled share-based payment —DEREEZ
expenses A&7 2 H 6,182 =
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, —HEME - BE K
plant and equipment BEEE 2 (W), EE (511) 941
— Exchange differences —[EH = (306) (8,859)
Operating cash flows before changes EEESEHAIZ
in working capital REHSRE 105,362 100,716
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEGEM), R
— consumable parts — HFE M (344) 54
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other B 5 K& H A pEYRIE
receivables A, (3 n) 6,723 (2,003)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables ,HHEFEH%IE(HQ\)/ijJD (3,742) 6,993
Decrease in deferred revenue PEFEU ZS R > (91,413) (83,096)
Cash generated from operations REEBE iﬁﬁ 16,586 22,664
PRC Enterprises Income Tax paid B E S (6,181) (10,161)
PRC Enterprises Income Tax refund RIS RUR R 6(a)(iii) - 4,314
Net cash generated from operating K&
activities REFH 10,405 16,817
Investing activities RETEE
Capital expenditure BEARAEZ (208,849) (132,031)
Repayment to ex-shareholder of a m—XM B AR
subsidiary AIAR BRE K (3,401) =
Interest received B UFE 1,711 3,683
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEREE
plant and equipment Z FT{SRIE 48 415
Purchase of intangible assets BARLAE (1,500) (439)

Net cash used in investing activities RETHFMARESTFE (211,991) (128,372)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HMEEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2008
HIF—FEENF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETTIT)
2008 2007
ZEENF —ET+HF
Note $'000 $'000
Kt Fr T

Financing activities AMEEE
Repayment of amount due to a related BE —RKEER R FIE

company = (630)
Interest paid B F & (16,429) (5,282)
Dividend paid to minority shareholders B DB RS (1,596) -
Proceeds from new bank loans HIRITERATB 8 22 111,778 213,584
Payment for repurchase of shares B B iR 1 1~ 3K 26 - (7,916)
Net cash generated from financing MEEHME

activities ReF8E 93,753 199,756
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBELEEER

cash equivalents OR2),/HEinEE (107,833) 88,201
Cash and cash equivalents at FYPZRERRS

beginning of the year £E1EH 323,284 212,811
Effect of foreign exchange MEEZEBE 2 HE

rate changes 14,580 22,272
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZEERES

end of the year %£{E1EH 17 230,031 323,284

The notes on pages 46 to 111 form part of these financial statements.

HNFEE 1B 2 M RBEK U S B HRKZ —
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Notes to the financial statements

B 755 R AR B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LOETTIR)

1

Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out

below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note 2 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial

statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2008 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to

as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial

statements is the historical cost basis.
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1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(c)

statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent

from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with
a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed

in note 33.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken
into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no

evidence of impairment.
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B 755 R AR B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LOETTIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(c)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (continved)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of subsidiaries
attributable to interests that are not owned by the Company, whether
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. Minority interests are presented in
the consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement as an allocation of the total profit or
loss for the year between minority interests and the equity shareholders

of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s interest in
the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further losses applicable
to the minority, are charged against the Group's interest except to
the extent that the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able
to, make additional investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group's interest is allocated all such
profits until the minority's share of losses previously absorbed by the

Group has been recovered.

In the Company's balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is stated

at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(g)).
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1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(d) Fixed assets

(0]

Property, plantand equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(g)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads

and borrowing costs (see note 1(t)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the

date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their residual value, if any,

using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

Buildings 5 —30 years
Dock and storage facilities 5 — 37 years
Office equipment 5—10 years
Motor vehicles 5—10 years

Leasehold improvements Over the term of the lease
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,

if any, are reviewed annually.
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B 755 R AR B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETITR)

1

Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(d) Fixed assets (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(f)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land

held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note
1(g)). Depreciation is provided over its estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis, after taking into account their estimated
residual values. Estimated useful life of the investment properties

is 20 years.

Construction in progress represents dock and storage facilities
under construction and pending installation, and is stated at
cost less impairment losses (see note 1(g)). Cost comprises
direct costs of construction as well as interest charges, and
foreign exchange differences on related borrowed funds to
the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest

charges, during the periods of construction.

Construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and
equipment when the asset is substantially ready for its intended
use. No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in

progress.

(e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated in the

balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the

estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(g)).

Amortisation of club memberships is charged to profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 17 to 20 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(f) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,

is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement

conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period

of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a

determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the

arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the

legal form of a lease.

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the

following exception:

—  land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair
value of which cannot be measured separately from the
fair value of a building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered into by

the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the

accounting period in which they are incurred.
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(LETIT)
- -gu - - - =
1 Significant accounting policies (contined 1 EXEEER @
(f) Leased assets (continued) (h HEEE@®
(i) Operating lease charges (continued) (i) AEREHES (&)

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is VAKS &30 & #5 G b B0 UK B A LA

amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease BHZNHEE RN -

term.

(g) Impairment of assets (9) EERE
(i) Impairment of current receivables (i) BURAEN IR R A

Current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost 1R AN B Sk SH B AR AR 2 B HA g

are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether WHRIBENESAHEBEN UEE

there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of EREEBRERSE FBRER

impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention BERAEESEBEE TS —EK

of the Group about one or more of the following loss events: % IEE 18 E TE R AT B SR ENR

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor; - EBAEBEAMISHE

—  abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in — EX - BENRsEENE
interest or principal payments; EEF B RAE

—  itbecoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy - EBATEEESEHESSE
or other financial reorganisation; and TEMBSER « &

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic — B W5 BEBEIEER
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the BHBESASMEEHA

debtor. BERAFRE -



1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(g) Impairment of assets (continved)

(i)

Impairment of current receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience

for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined had

no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade debtors and bills receivable included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors and
bills receivable directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(g) Impairment of assets (continved)

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:
- fixed assets;

- intangible assets;

- investments in subsidiaries; and

—  non-current prepayments.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is

estimated.
- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using the pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows

independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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BERETHE
(9) EERE )

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) HEuEERE(E)

1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved) 1

(g) Impairment of assets (continved)

Recognition of impairment losses

Animpairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value

less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect of

goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to the profit or loss in

the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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(KBTTHITR)

1

Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(h)

(i)

1)

(k)

Inventories

Spare parts held for consumption by the Group are stated at cost less

any provision for obsolescence.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see note 1(g)), except where the receivables are
interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the

consolidated cash flow statement.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share capital at
the option of the holder, where the number of shares that would be
issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that would
be received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as compound
financial instruments which contain both a liability component and an

equity component.
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1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(k) Convertible notes (continued)

U

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible notes
is measured as the present value of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market rate of interest applicable at
the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have a
conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the liability component is recognised as the equity
component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity components

in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost. The
interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the liability component
is calculated using the effective interest method. The equity component
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the note is converted

or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the capital reserve, together with the carrying
amount of the liability component at the time of conversion, is
transferred to share capital and share premium as consideration for
the shares issued. If the notes are redeemed, the capital reserve is

released directly to retained profits.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the

effective interest method.
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B 755 R AR B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LOETTIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(m) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined

contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these

amounts are stated at their present values.

Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured
at the grant date after taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over the vesting period,

taking into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On the vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company's shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or the option

expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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B IS R/ M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETTIIT)

1 Significant accounting policies (contined 1 EXEEER @
(n) FREH

(n) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly in equity, in

which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and
all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,

or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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B 755 R AR B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETITR)

1 Significant accounting policies (contined 1 EXEEER @
(n) FREBi®)

(n) Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business combination)
and temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible

differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that

it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends
are recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is

recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against

current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the

asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or
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1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless

the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents unearned rental income received in
advance, which is recognised as revenue in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease term (see note

1(n(i).
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Notes to the financial statements

B 755 R AR B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LOETTIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(q) Other payables

(r)

(s)

Other payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease

payments receivable.

(i) Port income is recognised in profit or loss upon performance of

the services.

(iii)  Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective

interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange

gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the

dates the fair value was determined.
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1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(s) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

()

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in a separate component of equity. The functional currencies
of the Company and its subsidiaries in the PRC are Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi respectively. The Group adopted Hong Kong dollars as

its presentation currency.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences recognised in equity which relate to that
foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit or loss

on disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalised as being
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get

ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary

to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use are complete.
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B 755 R AR B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETITR)

1

Significant accounting policies (coninued)

(u) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to

be related to the Group if:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating

policy decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in which

the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent, or a close family member of such
an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i)
or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant

influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the
benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a

related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who

may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in

their dealings with the entity.
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1 Significant accounting policies (ontinved)

(v)

(w)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is
engaged either in providing products or services (business segment),
or in providing products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and

rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting system,
the Group has chosen business segment information as the primary
reporting format and geographical segment information as the
secondary reporting format for the purposes of these financial

statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to that segment. Segment revenue, expenses,
assets and liabilities are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, except to the extent that such intra-group balances and
transactions are between group entities within a single segment. Inter-
segment pricing is based on similar terms as those available to other

external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible) that
are expected to be used for more than one period. Unallocated items
mainly comprise financial and corporate assets, interest-bearing loans,

borrowings, tax balances, corporate and financing expenses.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are

declared.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETITR)

2 Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following new Interpretations and an amendment
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of the

Group and the Company:

HK(IFRIC) 11, HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury share transactions

. HK(IFRIC) 12, Service concession arrangements

o HK(IFRIC) 14, HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum

funding requirements and their interaction

o Amendment to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement, and HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures —

Reclassification of financial assets

These HKFRS developments have had no material impact on the Group's
financial statements as either they were consistent with accounting policies
already adopted by the Group or they were not relevant to the Group's and

the Company’s operations.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet

effective for the current accounting period (see note 34).
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3 Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are provision of terminal, transshipment

and storage facilities services for oil and petrochemical products.

Turnover represents port income and storage and transshipment income. The

amount of each significant category recognised in turnover during the year
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B IS R/ M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETTIIT)

3 &R

AEEZ T EXBRREHREE  BHEAHK
ALEREFRIER -

BEBEAODUARETEREGRA - FAR
EEBEAERZEERBREHNT

is as follows:

2008 2007
—ZEZTN\F —ETLF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Port income BOUA 11,867 10,681
Storage and transshipment income ST LT N 153,299 149,605
165,166 160,286

- ]

4 Other net income 4 HiazF
2008 2007
—ZEN\F —ETLF
$'000 $'000
T T
Interest income B A 1,711 3,683

Rental receivable from investment FEUIE B EH S R E B
properties less direct outgoings SXHBIT(ZTRALF

of $Nil (2007: $130,668) 130,6887T) - 488
Net foreign exchange gain R N e 1,062 254
Others Hi 1,078 801

3,851 5,226

67/



Hans Energy Company Limited ;£ g2/RGR A7)
ANNUAL REPORT 2008 £ 3§

Notes to the financial statements

BY 5% R AR B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETIT)
- - AI_\\)_L
5 Profit before taxation 5 BRBIADEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): B i AT SE A D SRR (5FA) T B & IH R =
B o:
(a) Finance costs: (a) BARERRA :
2008 2007
—BENF e
$'000 $'000
Frx T
Interest on convertible notes AR RERT S - 7,135
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 16,429 1,473
Less: Borrowing costs capitalised as W BRNMERERTR
construction in progress ZIEBERA (16,429) (1,473)
- 7,135
The borrowing costs during 2008 have been capitalised at a rate of RZZZENF EEXREREREET
5.18% — 6.97% per annum (2007: 6.89% — 6.97% per annum) for TR F R5.18%%6.97% (=TT L F -
construction in progress. 6.89%%6.97% ) EAL o
(b) Staff costs: (b) EIRA :
2008 2007
—EBENF e
$'000 $'000
Frx T
Contributions to defined contribution M) 7€ R AR ARG I
retirement plans fEH 2 K 966 818
Salaries, wages and other benefits HE - TE REAMIEF 24,527 20,251
Equity settled share-based payments DA AAE 2RI 6,182 =

Total staff costs 488 TR 31,675 21,069
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B RS 3R R M 5T
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(XETIT)
- - AI_\\}_L L
5 Profit before taxation (continved) 5 BR®LADSEF )
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (continued) B i AiTSE A DA B (5FA) T B & IH K =
B (&)
(c) Other items: (c) HfbER :
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Charitable donations EE=1BER 3,353 =
Depreciation and amortisation e R#EH 29,218 26,880
Auditors' remuneration ZEEN S
— audit services — R EPRTS 1,180 1,180
— review services — &R 380 368
Net foreign exchange gain TR IE W am (1,062) (254)
(Gain)/loss on disposals of fixed assets HEREEEZ (W) Eig (511) 941
Operating lease charges: minimum lease KEREEA
payments — buildings HEBENKR—EF 5,628 2,861
6 Taxation 6 PIE
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income (a) MEBRRAMNBIEE -
statement represents:
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax RERIE —F A
for the year AT 8,461 5,614
Tax refund (note (iii)) REE (M7 (i) - (4,314)
Deferred tax — origination and reversal BRI -EREERY
of temporary differences (note 23) EAE KRB (HiF23) 511 5,686

8,972 6,986
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6 Taxation (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income
statement represents: (continued)

Notes:

(i

(ii)

No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided as the Group sustained a loss for
Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes for the year (2007: Nil).

Pursuant to the approval from the PRC authority issued in 2002 regarding
port operating business, one of the subsidiaries in the PRC, Guangdong
(Panyu) Petrochemical Storage & Transportation Ltd. ("GD (Panyu)”)
has been granted certain tax relief whereby the profit for the five years
starting from its first profit-making year is exempted from income tax
in the PRC and the profit for each of the subsequent five years is taxed
at 50% of the prevailing tax rate set by the local tax authority. The full
PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate applicable to GD (Panyu) is 15% and the
reduced rate is 7.5% for the year ended 31 December 2007.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth National
People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC
("new CIT Law") which takes effect on 1 January 2008. Under the new
CIT Law and in accordance with implementation rules and notices issued
by the State Council and the State Administration of Taxation (collectively
“Implementation Rules”), an entity established before 16 March 2007
that was entitled to preferential tax treatment prior to the new CIT Law
is subject to a transitional tax rate beginning in 2008 (“Transitional Tax
Rate") before the new corporate income tax rate of 25% applies. For
companies currently enjoying a reduced tax rate of 15%, the Transitional
Tax Rate is 18%, 20%, 22%, 24% and 25% in 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011
and 2012 onwards respectively. Under the grandfathering treatments of
the new CIT Law, GD (Panyu), which has not fully utilised its five-year tax
relief upon the implementation of the new CIT Law, is allowed to receive
the tax relief during the five-year grandfathering period. Accordingly,
the applicable tax rate of GD (Panyu) for the year ended 31 December
2008 is 9%. The tax relief of GD (Panyu) ended at 31 December 2008.
The new applicable tax rates for future years have been applied in the
measurement of GD (Panyu)’s deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December
2008.

In addition, under the new CIT Law, dividends paid by a foreign-invested
enterprise to its foreign investors are subject to withholding tax at a rate
of 10% unless reduced by treaty. Under the grandfathering treatments,
undistributed profits of a foreign-invested enterprise as at 31 December
2007 are exempted from withholding tax.

6 BEw
(a) HEBBERANBIEE ()

e

(0]

(ii)

RERNEHEME - ARARERER
EEER - Bt EREBFEHEMHE
(Z22LF 8-

ﬂiﬁfr@lﬁﬁﬁ”‘%ﬁ_? ToEREN

%ﬁ%ﬁmzmﬁ HAp—RAAH
IZMTE Big(ER) AR IEE
FEERA ‘J(F B(ER)ESET
MIEESR  BEBEEFNFERLTAEN
R MR BPECEMSGSHE  MEAR
FEZRIEEEF R FIRE50% % IRE
R EEENBITHEGK - HEZT
T+F+-A=+—HLFE  BAR
BR(EZEBIZPBECEMERE2HFE
715% + MREBERA7.5% °

—ETHF=-A+ A FTEZ2EA
RRERAGERAXRSEBBF li%}ﬁﬁ
SRE(THRERBHELD -
TENGF—A—HBER - E%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
SRUE T RARYR B B 5 b R B R B 548
)%%éﬁjz%@iﬂﬁll&L%ﬂ(%}E%ﬁfEﬁﬁiﬂi
E‘H) ’ FL —== 7{5‘5 ﬂ+/\EiHIﬁX
B RHEITH R RSP AR
EIHFBENER =TT /\FHHB -
RET T EFS R R 25%E A1 BIZBE
%RX(UB/E%R J)iﬁm 2 15% %
MEMHA TNEFE - ZTTAH
i»:? $¢ :?**E&:
ZFEROBERED R AF18%  20%
22% > 24% K% 25% ° FEHEEMEHNE
EHBERGIT - BB (EB)REHI
MEABHATEESHAFTRIEER
UG S ZENBUER 6 60 A & A AT R
BER - Bl BE(EBEE-ZTT
NFE+ZA=+—RILFERNFERHRE
R9% - BE(ER)NRBEREN=-F
ZNFT+A=+T—H&ER - RFTEE
B(EB)R=ZTZTN\F+=-A=1+—8”
RIEERIEEER  ERERFEER
AR E -

I EIREEMBBORT » BRIEHE
ﬁ?ﬁ\\ IEREINEBIMTEEZ

B B EBAN10%TEIFL - ERZHBE
REIT INERER=_TZTLF+=A
=+ —BZADEEFERRHMNTEN
i o



6 Taxation (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income
statement represents: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ifi)

During 2007, pursuant to notices issued by the local tax buxeau, PRC
income tax of $4,314,000 was refunded to GD (Panyu)’s foreign investor
in relation to the reinvestment of profits in the PRC in accordance with
the relevant tax rules and regulations.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
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6 BEw
(a) HEBBERANBIEE ()

Mz - (&)

(i) R-ZEZLFR REMBHFBAELZ
A BRBEABRERARARE - &
B(EB) ZBIMNEEE BN 5B
RERPEMEREDBEEEMEH
4,314,0007T °

(b) HBERAB R E 2 HEA

accounting profit at applicable tax rate: HEEHRMNZAE
2008 2007
—ETN\F —ETLF
$'000 $'000
Fx For
Profit before taxation B A58 AT A 72,490 78,302
Notional tax on profit before tax, REATTE18%
calculated at the applicable (ZZZTLF : 15%):t82
tax rate of 18% (2007: 15%) FR B A F) B &= B IR 13,048 11,745
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TRHEHZ 2 BB e 2,042 1,110
Tax effect of non-taxable income IERBIUMA 2 B & (679) (573)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIBS R 2 & 2,814 2,460
Tax refund R = (4,314)
Effect of change in tax rates BEESH o8 - 4,515
Effect of tax relief granted rh B B B A m R
to a PRC subsidiary BRI 2 (8,253) (7,957)
Actual tax expense EREBIES 8,972 6,986

71



Hans Energy Company Limited ;£ B g2/RER Q7
ANNUAL REPORT 2008 £ 3§

Notes to the financial statements

B 755 R AR B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETITR)
7 Directors’ remuneration 7 EEME
Directors' remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong EEMESREBED AR RHEHI FE 161K E 0
Companies Ordinance is as follows: TS 8
2008
—EBEN\F
Equity
Salaries, settled
allowances Retirement share-
and benefits scheme based
Directors in kind Discretionary contributions payments
fee FrEM - 2R bonuses B DERAHE Total
EEHE KREYUS BETEA SRR ZRHOXE =F
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
Executive directors HiTEE
David An HiE = 2,804 = 30 - 2,834
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas B - 875 - 12 726 1,613
Liu Zhi Jun 2EE = 875 = 60 726 1,661
Zhang Lei RE = 1,109 = 12 726 1,847
Independent non-executive BUHNTEE
directors
Li Wai Keung FE 120 - - - 17 137
Liu Jian il 120 - - - 17 137
Chan Chun Wai, Tony PR (E 120 - - - 17 137

360 5,663 = 114 2,229 8,366
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7 Directors’ remuneration (continsed) 7 EEMew
2007
—ERETALF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Directors in kind Discretionary contributions
fee Ml EEK bonuses /N Total
EE kA BN s TR &
§'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 §'000
T T T T T
Executive directors HITEE
David An A = 2,474 60 30 2,564
Feng Ya Lei ke - 225 45 - 270
Zhou Nan Zheng [E i - 225 45 5 275
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas EEH = 845 65 12 922
Liu Zhi Jun 2AEE = 845 65 33 943
Zhang Lei RE - 498 - 5 503
Independent non-executive BUHRTEE
directors
Li Wai Keung e 120 - - - 120
Liu Jian 2 120 - - - 120
Chan Chun Wai, Tony BRik(E 120 - - - 120
360 5112 280 85 5837

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Company to the
Directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out in note 8 below
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office. There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

EAFE  AARBEDHBAERTKT
P RE8 R 3t T A = B A AR (AR A B
& ARSI RFMBARESIARDNES K
TERBERAE - EAFE - BEER LR BEAZ
EENENRABHECAME -
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8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 EEFMAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, four (2007: RAEBRhESE&FMALH  HPEE(Z
five) are directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in the TELF AR)ALTRARAESE - Afe
disclosure in note 7 above. The emoluments in respect of the remaining R EXHFIHRE - EMAL(ZZETLF
individual (2007: Nil) is as follow: )M
2008 2007
—ETN\F —ETLF
$'000 $'000
Fr FIT
Salaries and other benefits 57 K2 B At 43 R 585 -
Equity settled share-based payments At S E 2 R H 512 -
Contributions to defined contribution TE R AR KT 8 2 itk
retirement plans 27 -
1,124 -
The emoluments of the remaining individual (2007: Nil) with the highest EtiEmFMAL(ZZZLF : E)2MEN
emoluments is within the following band: FIATEHE :

Number of individuals

AH
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,0017C21,500,0007T 1 -
9 Result attributable to equity 9 ARTRREMGEE
shareholders of the Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company NA R R FEAG 2 76 F) B 5 E5188,790,000
includes a loss of $8,790,000 (2007: $9,765,000) which has been dealt with TT(ZZEZEF :9,765,0007T) * HERAAR]

in the financial statements of the Company. WISk AR -



9 Result attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company (continved)

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s (loss)/profit for the
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9 ARNTREEMESE

ERREERRARFEN(ER), 52 B

year:
2008 2007
—EENF —ETtF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Amount of consolidated loss attributable to REREIEARE B2
equity shareholders dealt with in the (RAR R ERERANREL)
Company's financial statements (8,790) (9,765)
Final dividends from subsidiaries attributable Bt B 1 =) fpt = ] B B 4F Vg
to the profits of the previous financial year, kB 2 REARR S
approved and paid during the year (RE A I AZ RIRE) - 120,000
Company's (loss)/profit for the year (note 27) RRBERN(EE),Smfl(HF27) (8,790) 110,235

10 Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
$56,395,000 (2007: $64,014,000) and the weighted average of
3,732,638,000 (2007: 3,085,579,063) ordinary shares in issue during

the year, calculated as follows:

10 BRRER
(a) BREARR

BREARFTBEFANARRE 2 LA
A% A% B FE 1 34 #1156,395,00070( =2 £
4 : 64,014,0007T ) }& B 81T 38 AR A0 4E
I 5 813,732,638,0000 ( = T T + F :
3,085,579,063/%) + ETEFXLAT :

2008 2007
—ZEN\F ZEELF
Number Number
of shares of shares
R4 EE Bin ek B
‘000 ‘000
T8 T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BZB#&TEERK 3,732,638 2,477,146
Effect of shares repurchased BRI D < £ - (13,403)
Effect of issue of shares on exercise AT TR AR E T ™
of convertible notes BIIRMD 2B - 621,836

RTZA=+—Hz2EBR
hniEF 2

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at 31 December

3,732,638 3,085,579
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10 Earnings per share (contined)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company
of $56,395,000 (2007: $71,149,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 3,732,638,000 (2007: 3,733,743,447),

calculated as follows:

(i) Profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the

10 BRER )
(b) BREZER

BREFRF DBEARAZ EBR
% B FE 15 % #156,395,00000( = T =F +
4 : 71,149,0007T ) } B 81T 8 AR AN AE
F 5 $3,732,638,0000 ( = T T + F :
3,733,743,4478%) + ETE AT ¢

() AR AE BRI R EN 5 (BE)

Company (diluted)

2008 2007
—sENF —ETE
$'000 $'000
T T

Profit attributable to ordinary equity el e
shareholders (basic) i A (EZR) 56,395 64,014

Effect of effective interest on the liability AR ERE ED

component of convertible notes ZEBRNETE - 7,135

Profit attributable to ordinary equity AR AR R B (L
shareholders (diluted) N (E#E) 56,395 71,149
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10 Earnings per share (continved) 10 8REF =)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued)

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

(b) EREBERF &)

(i) BB IEFIIE (HE)

2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
Number Number
of shares of shares
B8 E MRiner B
'000 ‘000
TR F A%
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+ZA=+—HzEAR
at 31 December hnEF 5 ER 3,732,638 3,085,579
Effect of conversion of convertible notes EHMAMRER T8 - 648,164
Weighted average number of ordinary R+ZA=+—HzEAR
shares (diluted) at 31 December DnkE 15 S () 3,732,638 3,733,743

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2008
is same as the basic earnings per share as the inclusion of the effect
of outstanding share options would have an anti-dilutive effect on the

earnings per share.

11 Segment reporting 1

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group's operations are organised into two
operating divisions, namely, provision of transshipment and storage facilities
and port income. These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its

primary segment information.

HRFARTERBREZZESHER
EABNELEREIVE RBEE_T
ENF+T_A=+—RLFEZEERE
SERMNEGRERBNER o

7 BRI E
ES PR

RHEER  AKEIEBHAMELEES
2 - BRI R - A ROB DR -
HESHAFEARERAIESHEH L E
pi: )

N\
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11 Segment reporting (continved)

Business segments (continued)

Business segment information about these businesses are presented below:

1 DEEHE

EXa @

TIRREXL 2D EER

2008
—EEN\F
Provision of
transshipment
and storage
facilities Port
REEERR income Consolidated
BP 17 3% I AOWRA RE
$'000 $'000 $'000
Frx Fr Fr
Turnover R
External sales (note 3) SMNERSHE (AaE3) 153,299 11,867 165,166
Results ES
Segment results DEDELE 101,718 11,056 112,774
Interest income (note 4) FEMA (Hi7t4) 1,711
Unallocated corporate income RAOBER FRA 2,140
Unallocated corporate expenses ROLARXZ I (44,135)
Profit before taxation BB AR A 72,490
Income tax (note 6(a)) S8 (Hat6(a)) (8,972)
Profit for the year FREF 63,518
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 341,955 1,070 343,025
Unallocated corporate assets ROMAREE 754,905
Total assets mEE 1,097,930
Liabilities =R
Segment liabilities HEEE 130,486 272 130,758
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAOBEAFIRE 428,516
Total liabilities FER=N 559,274
Other information Hib&w
Capital expenditure BEARFALZ 269,417 - 269,417
Depreciation and amortisation e R
— Segment depreciation and — D EBHTE Rk
amortisation 28,121 = 28,121
— Unallocated depreciation and — R Be T & K 5H
amortisation 1,097
Total depreciation and amortisation e R AT 29,218
Gain on disposals of fixed assets HEREEEE 2 B 511 - 511




11 Segment reporting (continved)

Business segments (continved)

Business segment information about these businesses are presented below:
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B AR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETTIIT)

T RZREXG ZEBDER : (&)

(continued)
2007
—ETLF
Provision of
transshipment and
storage facilities Port
R & income Consolidated
BR1F AR EOUMA Ny
$'000 $'000 $'000
FIT FIT FIT
Turnover = S
External sales (note 3) SNERSHEE (HYaE3) 149,605 10,681 160,286
Results ES
Segment results DEPERE 103,412 9,279 112,691
Interest income (note 4) FEWA (HizE4) 3,683
Unallocated corporate income ROFRAFUWA 1,543
Unallocated corporate expenses ROMARFAL (32,480)
Profit from operations A5 85,437
Finance costs (note 5(a)) WIS (Hat5(a)) (7,135)
Profit before taxation BRBE AR R 78,302
Income tax (note 6(a)) Fris® (Kfate(a)) (6,986)
Profit for the year FRER 71,316
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 353,357 3,788 357,145
Unallocated corporate assets AOBEARIEE 558,822
Total assets wmEE 915,967
Liabilities a&
Segment liabilities HEBE 211,645 961 212,606
Unallocated corporate liabilities RABEAFEE 258,685
Total liabilities mafmE 471,291
Other information Hit &
Capital expenditure BEARFALZ 132,031 - 132,031
Depreciation and amortisation HrEs Ry
— Segment depreciation and — D EBHTEE R
amortisation 25,830 = 25,830
— Unallocated depreciation and — R Be T & K 5H
amortisation 1,050
Total depreciation and amortisation e REHERE 26,880
Loss on disposals of fixed assets HEERTEEEZEE 941 - 941
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11 Segment reporting (continued) 1M 7EBE =)
Business segments (continued) ES 16 )
The Group is engaged in the provision of terminal, transshipment and storage AEENFRHESE - B KA F 2GR
facilities services. More than 90% of the Group's turnover are derived from A5 M 0% M & R B B R (FB
operations in the PRC (other than Hong Kong). PAGN) e

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and DEEEZREERYE - BEREEZIBR
additions to property, plant and equipment, analysed by the geographical REEMERDIAT :

area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amount of Additions to property,

segment assets plant and equipment

AMEEREE REYE - BERRE
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEEN\F —TTLF —EBEN\F —EELF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T F7T T FT
PRC (other than Hong Kong) B (BB LAIN) 1,068,083 870,636 269,339 125,128
Hong Kong B 29,847 45,331 78 19

1,097,930 915,967 269,417 125,147




Hans Energy Company Limited ;£ 28R GR A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2008 3§

Notes to the financial statements
B IS R/ M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETTIIT)
- '*' ~.
12 Fixed assets 12 EEEE
(a) The Group (a) &=&KHE
Interests in
[and held
for own
use under
operating
Dock leases
and storage Office Leasehold RE Total
Investment facilities  equipment Motor  improvements Construction SEHE  Fived assets
Buildings property EER H#AE vehicles & Subtotal inprogress EfFEAz  BREE
% REN% BRI B RE NELE Ngf HERIE 1R e
§1000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §000 §000 §'000
T T T T i it it it F T
(hote (5) (hote ) (note )
(b)) ) ()
Cost: A
At 1 January 2008 RZFEN\F-A-8 14,438 260 483,244 3429 10,156 149 513,678 249,19 40,330 803,204
Exchange adjustments A% 888 105 29,69 165 588 = 31,444 19416 2493 53353
Additions - - 644 198 602 - 1544 U178 - w3
Disposals (338) (2,367) (1,957) (90) - - &752) - - #752)
Transfer - - 1,074 - - - 1,074 (1,074) - -
At 31 December 2008 14988 - 512,703 3802 11,346 149 542,988 509,716 283 1,095,521
Accumulated depreciation ZiFERAH
and amortisation:
At 1 January 2008 RZZEN\F-A-B 4758 601 210,09 2,089 5,349 %3 222,989 - 17,361 240,350
Exchange adjustments EiAg 301 8 13326 107 302 = 14,064 - 1,09 15159
Charge for the year EEREREE 579 9 25,265 434 1213 3t 21,615 - 1478 29,09
Wtten back on disposals R ERER (103) (1) (1612) ] - - (2514) - - (2514)
At 31 December 2008 RZBBNFTZA=1-H 5935 = 17,018 2553 6,864 124 262,154 - 19,934 282,088
Net book value: FEFE:
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE+ZA=1-H 9453 - 265,625 1,249 448 5 280834 509,716 2,889 813,439
Cost: A
At 1 January 2007 W-F5tE-A-B 13,059 2086 441,404 4137 10721 149 4715% 1267771 37,192 635,525
Exchange adjustments A% 1,102 176 37,017 75 847 = 39417 10440 3,138 52,995
Additions - - 3 266 04 - 133 123914 - 125147
Disposals - = (7.578) (1,249) (1,636) = (10,463) = - (10,463)
Transfer 01 - 11,658 - - - 11,935 (11,935) - -
At 31 December 2007 R=FELE+-A=1-H 14438 2,6 483,244 3429 10,156 149 513,678 249,19 40,330 803,204
Accumulated depreciation ZitFERAH
and amortisation:
At 1 January 2007 R=5%t5-A-A 3,860 308 178,181 2,676 4851 62 189,944 = 14518 204,462
Bxchange adjustments ERAE 348 3 15,951 200 4 - 16,946 B 1,288 18,34
Charge for the year ERREREY 550 51 0 0 110 31 25,006 - 1,555 2,761
Written back on disposals Rt ERER - - (6,780) (1,188) (1,139) - (9,107) = - (8,107)
At 31 December 2007 RZEBtF+-A=1-R 4758 601 210,09 2,089 5,349 %3 22,989 - 17,361 240,350
Net book value: FEFE
At 31 December 2007 RZSELETZA=1-A 9,680 1,661 73,145 1340 4807 56 290,689 249,19 22,969 562,854
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12 Fixed assets (continued)

12 BIEEE

(b) Investment property represents certain floors of the Company’s office

building rented out under the terms of operating leases.

(C) Construction in progress as at 31 December 2008 comprises costs

incurred on the acquisition of land use rights and the construction of

port facilities.

(d) The Group was granted the rights to use the land by the PRC authorities

with lease terms of 50 years. The net book value as at 31 December
2008 includes an amount of $1,500,000 (2007: $1,619,000) which is

disclosed as interest in land held for own use under operating leases

under current assets.

(b) #EWEEARARBLEBLOMER
HE—ERAEBFTZETEE -

() R=ZZENFE+=—RA=+—HZERET
26 FE UK BE o (s A e AR OB D 3R
LR o

(d) ~=EETERGRBRTLHERD
- HEHANE - R NEF+
A=+ RAZEEEFERRESE
1,500,0007C (ZZZ+ 4 :1,619,0007T) -
ERTHEEHRE T2 IREBLEHER
EB Az LIRS EE -

(e) The Company (e) &AAF]
Office
equipment
WARRE
$'000
T
Cost: A
At 1 January 2008 RZZZNF—HA—H 701
Exchange adjustment [EE 5 %L 35
gl Ay BSUSNETSRETE e 2
Accumulated depreciation: REHTE
At 1 January 2008 RZZZENF—H—H 358
Exchange adjustment I 5, 5 B 20
Charge for the year FEHE 144
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZENF+-A=+—H 522
Net book value: BRENFE :
At 31 December 2008 RZZZNF+_HA=+—H 214




12 Fixed assets (continued)

(e) The Company (continued)
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12 BIEEE
(e) &AATF#)

Office
equipment
PREZME
$'000
T
Cost: B
At 1 January 2007 R-TZ+F—-F—H 658
Exchange adjustment b R 43
At 31 December 2007 701
Accumulated depreciation: RItiE
At 1 January 2007 R-ZZZL+F—HA—H 204
Exchange adjustment I 5 SR B 18
Charge for the year FEME 136
At 31 December 2007 KRBT E+—A=+—H 358
Net book value: BREEE :
At 31 December 2007 RZZZ+F+-_A=+—H 343
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13 Intangible assets

13 BREE

The Group
rEH

Club
membership
25

$'000

Cost:

At 1 January 2008
Exchange adjustment
Additions

At 31 December 2008

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2008
Exchange adjustment
Charge for the year

R-ZENF—-HA—H

At 31 December 2008

aiElinece ol . a2 ) i

Net book value:
At 31 December 2008

ZENF+-A=+—H

3,380

Cost:

At 1 January 2007
Exchange adjustment
Additions

At 31 December 2007

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2007
Charge for the year

R_ZELF—H—H

At 31 December 2007

aiElnece o N ' e i i

Net book value:
At 31 December 2007

TT+HF+-A=+—H

1,979

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “administrative

expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

REE2HHE R ARG BRERITTRER]
oo



14 Prepayments for acquisition of land use
rights
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14 W TR TR RIE

The Group
rEE

2008 2007
—EENF —TTHF
$'000 $'000
T T
At 1 January R—A—8 = =
Additions HERE 25,695 —
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—8 25,695 -

The Group made prepayments for the acquisition of land use rights. The

related ownership certificates are being applied.

15 Investments in subsidiaries

AEBE AN KRB L ERE SR RIEAHR
THRAFR B HERE

15 RHIB AR Z2RE

The Company

PN
2008 2007
—2EN\F —ZETLF
$'000 $'000
Fr FIT
Unlisted equities, at cost FEETRG - KA 1,051,500 1,051,500
Amount due from a subsidiary EUR—RKB A RIFIEA 2,830 2,803
1,054,330 1,054,303

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and have no

fixed terms of repayment.

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally

affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(c) and have

been consolidated into the Group financial statements.

FEW — KB AR 2 RIBREEIT - 28 - M
BEEFEERE -

TRESIIEBYEREMLE  AENAE
ZHBARE -

RBMENORE - ZEM B R RHE AR
BRA WEAHARKEZERE M HERE
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15 Investments in subsidiaries (continved)

15 RMB AR Z’RE @)

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2008 are as

ARBRZZBENGF T Z_A=+—HZ2EEM

follows: AT BT
Particulars
of issued and
paid up Attributable
Place of share capital/ equity
Place of incorporation/ registered capital interest
Name of operation establishment BRTR PEfh B Principal
subsidiary ey MR BERAR Directly Indirectly activities
WELEEE 1t 2 BRIz it 2 HEMBRAFE E# & TEXK
Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares = 100% Provision of
Company Limited &8 &b - $20,000,000 administrative
BERREIERAR E:387%20,000,0007T services
REITHRRS
Oriental Point Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares = 100% Inactive
International Limited B BB - $1,000,000 EEER
REREBEARAR 38R 1,000,0007
Timeslink Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% = Provision of
Development Limited BE B -$10,000 administrative
R EEARAR LA 10,0007T services
RETHRS
Union Petro-Chemicals Hong Kong British Ordinary shares 100% = Investment
(BVI) Company Limited BB Virgin Islands - Us§100 holding
BREAR B IER HEELHS LAEMR100%ETT REERK
NS
GD (Panyu) PRC PRC RMB220,000,000 = 92% Storage and
B5(%B) HE i AR #220,000,0007T transshipment
ALERETE
BN aa TER PRC PRC RMB4,820,800 - 92% Investment
BRAR("HEAL") HE i AE#4,820,8007T holding
REEK
REmRMERALE G PRC PRC RMBS5,000,000 - 92% Storage and
BRARCRERMBEER") i H AE#5,000,0007T transshipment

ALERETE

Note: GD (Panyu) is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company and 1 #8A
{t and S MNBIES are limited liability companies.

Kt

BALERRMNEBRER—KERE

27 -

ER(EFEB)E—RFIAGERF " F

£
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(KAL)
. =
16 Trade and other receivables 16 ES R HMWEWFIE
The Group The Company
REME ARAF]
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF —EENF —TELF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fx Fx Fr T
Trade receivables =G 9,234 13,070 - -
Less: Allowance for W RIBIREE
doubtful debts (Hiat16(b))
(note 16(b)) (5,915) (5,571) - -
3,319 7,499 = _
Prepayments and other FRRTRRIA K
receivables H b fE YR IE 4,045 5,992 358 2
7,364 13,491 358 2

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered within

one year.

(a) Trade receivables that are not impaired

Subject to negotiation, credit is generally only available to major

customers with well-established trading records. The Group allows an

average credit period of 30 — 90 days to its trade customers. Further

details on the company's credit policy are set out in note 28(a).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually

nor collectively considered to be impaired are as follows:

MEES REMEERABRER —FA
iem e

(a) RBEEZEWIERMR

BIaRERTE  BREH—BRERET
BERURGRBZEBRRF - A5E LG
FEHEF FHE0REI0KZHRIEH ©
EBARBEEBR 2 — S BERN
Fi5E28(a) °

I FE {7l 3% 2 R #E R R (B 2 FE W E 5
RN BRI AT

The Group
rEH
2008 2007
—sENF —ETE
$'000 $'000
Fr FIT
Neither past due nor impaired RNEHA T ARRE 3,319 6,397

Less than 1 month past due

BN —EA

= 1,102

3,319 7,499
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16 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(a) Trade receivables that are not impaired

(continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.

(b) Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of

the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off

against trade receivables directly (see note 1(g)(i)).

At 31 December 2008, the Group's trade receivables of $5,915,000
(2007: $5,571,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that the receivables
are not expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances
for doubtful debts of $5,915,000 (2007: $5,571,000) were recognised.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year

represented the effect of change in exchange rate.

16 EZREMEKRKIE

(a)

(b)

RAREEZERERR &)

B 28 BB R OB (B 2 e U AR S ) B2 — it £
FEBERIFCBZBLUZFER - 1B
BRELR  EEERGELERZST
BERMELRERE - ARRERTFZE
SEERUESAEEHRERDBRRA
IATE UL E o ANER (B 3 M ot 2% 55 A BR AT
BEAERR

B 5 BWRR ZRE

BZRBERF 2 REBRABERL
B MR AR BEARE A B R 2 W E
BIE - A EEER SRR T (R
FEEE1(Q))) ©

RZZEZNF+ZA=+—H K&
EERBEERAELE HERERS
5,915,0007T (= ZFZ 4 : 5,571,0007T) °
18 Bl k1B 2 FE W BR SR 2R 75 B B R 2 2 %%
FPAERE  BEENEZEERBRRTE
s e FEt - BiEREERBRES
5,915,0007C(=ZF =+ 4 : 5,571,0007T) °
AN £ B0 A 5t UL S A AR A (E frT 4R

]
aA °

FARRERBEEIREZIEHNY
2.
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(BB TR
17 Cash and cash equivalents 17 RERBELEEER
The Group The Company
AEE LN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—RENE  “TTLF CBENF —TTLH
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt T T
Time deposits T BATF 3K 5,732 11,262 5,732 9,202
Other cash and HEMBRekBe
cash equivalents £@EIEH 224,299 312,022 1,781 1,939
230,031 323,284 7,513 11,141
18 Amount due from a director 18 B —RESIE

Advance to a director of the Group disclosed pursuant to section 161B of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

Name of borrower and position Mr Zhang Lei, Director

Terms of advance

— duration and repayment terms Repayable on demand

— advance amount $2,000,000

— interest rate Interest-free

— security None
Balance of the advance

—at 1 January 2007 $Nil

—at 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008 $Nil

— at 31 December 2008 $Nil
Maximum balance outstanding

— during 2008 $2,000,000

— during 2007 $Nil

BREE N FEPIE161BIRZ R ERE MRS
B —REERMZANKOT

BT AL KB T RELE EF
BRI
— FH KB BREER AR EE
—BRREE 2,000,0007T
-BX %8
— AR i
BT
~-RZBF+F—A—H T
-RZBFLF+-A=+—-HBK
T \E—A—H T
-R=ZFE\F+=-A=+—H Eo
ERABEER
—-ZZT)\FR 2,000,0007T
—ZZTLER o
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19 Other payables and accruals

All of the other payables and accruals, apart from retention payables of
$8,843,000 (2007: $3,285,000) that are expected to settle after one year,

are expected to be settled within one year.

20 Deferred revenue

19 Ett BN RERTIRERN

& & < B 1R £8,843,0000( = T & + 4 :
3,285,00070 ) FBERR — F&IBI 4N - FiaH At
ERFERHRERESER —FRER -

20 IR R

The Group
AEE
2008 2007
—ZTN\F —TTLF
$'000 $'000
T T
Within one year —&FR 95,471 91,085
More than one year, but not exceeding two years iR —FENBRME 34,318 86,188
More than two years, but not exceeding five years ~ FBEBRF{E BB R F - 32,321
129,789 209,594
Less: Amount due within one year shown under B mBREER TR
current liabilities —FREH 2 (95,471) (91,085)
Amount due after one year —FRHE o5 34,318 118,509

On 29 December 2004, the Group entered into a lease agreement (the “Lease
Agreement”) with a third party (the “Lessee”) for the lease of certain oil
storage tanks of the Group (the “Qil Storage Tanks”) and the non-exclusive
use of related transshipment, docking, loading and unloading facilities for
a period of 20 years from the date of delivery of the use of the Qil Storage
Tanks at an annual rental of approximately $90 million. Pursuant to the Lease
Agreement, the Group received five years' rentals of approximately $490
million on signing of the Lease Agreement and was obliged to pass the right

to use part of the Qil Storage Tanks to the Lessee on 1 January 2005.

“TTNFEFT_A=t+NA AEEHEF=

(EBEADSRAEBRES TAREFE(A
HErTERE]) - NRIEERIEREEE  THHERE
YIEEERE— SR AN (A ]) - HEER
NEHTFEERERRETAR-+F &
FHREH9,0008 7T - RIEHL - AEBNE
EHAORFEWRAFHESLO49ET  LER
—TTRE—A—ABBoAATERZEA
R THEMA °



21 Amount due to a related company

Details of the amount due to the related company are as follows:

Name of Company

DNE BB
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETTIIT)

21 B —XEEQRFKIE

FEN B R AR ZFHITWT

The Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ZETLF
$'000 $'000
T T

BN RARETERAR ("BRA1L")

= 1,525

251t is the minority shareholders of GD (Panyu). The amount due to B

Z A1k was unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

22 Bank loans

At 31 December 2008, the bank loans are repayable as follows:

BAALAEES(ES) 2 VEPER - BB
Atz 38 BERT - 68 RAREERME
818 -

22 SRITER

RZBENF+ZA=+—8 - fRITEREAR
T3 EAREERE

The Group
rEE

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
$'000 $'000
T T
After 1 year but within 2 years —FIRERFA 95,021 -
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBRENAN 245,155 213,584
340,176 213,584

At 31 December 2008, the Group's banking facilities totalling $608,915,000
(2007: $573,473,000) were secured by certain of the Group’s future non-
cancellable operating leases receivables (see note 29(b)). The facilities were
utilised to the extent of $340,176,000 (2007: $213,584,000).

RZZTEZNF+_A=+—H A£E@EEH
608,915,0007T( = & T + 4F : 573,473,0007T )
ZIRATRERE Ty AR ER B 35 F R 2R T Al B A
& 70 B RE U kI8 (BT E29(b)) fE IR 4 - B &)
FA 2 B & %8 [Z /5340,176,0007T( — T T L 4F ¢
213,584,0007T) °
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23 Deferred tax liabilities

The movements of deferred tax liabilities during the year are as follows:

23 EEHIEEE

FRRERARBEESERNAT

(i)  The Group iy A&
Construction Convertible
in progress notes Total
EEIR AERE &%
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Deferred tax arising from: BREFEAKE -
At 1 January 2007 RZZTZTLF—H—A - 5,539 5,539
Exchange adjustment RIS 267 - 267
Charged/(credited) to income statement REZRIE(GEA)

(note 6(a)) (Kiat6(a)) 6,594 (908) 5,686
Credited to reserves AR - (4,631) (4,631)
At 31 December 2007 RZZTLF+-_A=+—H 6,861 - 6,861
At 1 January 2008 RZZZENF—HA—H 6,861 - 6,861
Exchange adjustment R 431 - 431
Charged to income statement RERKRHR

(note 6(a)) (Ftat6(a)) 511 - 511
At 31 December 2008 RZZEENF+=—A=+—H 7,803 - 7,803




23 Deferred tax liabilities (continved)

(ii)

The Company
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23 EEHEEFE

(ii)

ANRF]

Convertible

Notes

AR EE

$'000

Tt

Deferred tax arising from: FEFIERE -

At 1 January 2007 R-_EEL+F—H—H 5,539
Credited to income statement REEKRFTA (908)
Credited to reserves STARE (4,631)

At 31 December 2007 and 2008

RZZEZLER=ZT

T \F+=A=+—F -

(iif)

(iv)

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(n), the Group
has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of the cumulative tax
losses of approximately $84 million (2007: $68 million) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The

tax losses do not expire under the current tax legislation.

At 31
undistributed profits of the Group's foreign-invested enterprise
amounted to $81,340,000. Deferred tax liabilities of $4,067,000 have

December 2008, temporary differences relating to the

not been recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of the foreign-invested enterprise and the Directors
have determined that the profits will not be distributed in the

foreseeable future.

(iif)

(iv)

REH IR GETEEK - BRA
FAE BRI KA BN A BB 75 BLA 12
[ FE AR T A AT (L B A DA 3K A R B
18 o AREERA B R 5T IEE 15 498,400
BRL(ZZZLF 68008 T) ERELT
BIREE - BREBBRITHE - TIBREER
BERE -

R-ZTETZN\F+-_A=+—0 @#HAE
EINEREZ RADEFEEBHREY
B4 2= 2 A H581,340,0000T © ANA A&
BN IR L E R EHE R i R 2 18
IR T FTE & 184,067,0000T © REZ
RAREHZIINECEZREBE - M
EZGERETERNARBERIIEZD
Al Z RO BEFIE o
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24 Employee retirement benefits

25

The employees of GD (Panyu), SR EIFE and &A1k are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC government.
GD (Panyu), SIMBIEE and 2 #8A1E are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances of its staff to
the retirement scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required contribution under
the scheme. The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits associated with this scheme beyond the annual contributions

described above.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly

relevant income of $20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Equity settled share-based transactions

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 16 December 2002, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “scheme"”) for the purpose
of enabling the Company to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and
attract resources that are available to the Group and to provide the Company
with a means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to such persons who contribute or may bring
benefit to the Group. The scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years

from adoption of such scheme and will expire on 15 December 2012.

On 7 May 2008, the Board approved to grant options in respect of 72,400,000
ordinary shares to the Company's directors and senior management under

the scheme. Details are as follow:

24 RKBRIFTE

25

BE(ER) RNBEREETRALEZEER
BRI TR 2 B R B IR KRR AT 82 5K
8- 88(FR) RMEERDEALEAR
HETZHM ARETREEZEEADL
ARZRARFT IR - B RINEAF B S -
AEE 2 E—BERREZTEELAEZH
Ko B B EBEHFIN - REBEZ SR
RN I EEMEARNRELE -

REBNRRBEBERBEIERZES B
BRI AR ST ERPIRAREIMERES
SEI(RTESFE ) - BRESFE I —HAE
S RFEATEZ R HRFERNGE - BIREE
e 8l BEEREEESHREEEHKRAZ
5%MFTBIE L HFR - M LAS A R A 20,000
TLRMR o Mt EEL 2 HRAKSEE TES -

LRESEEZBROXS

BE—ZEE_F+-_A+BRBZ-BLHE
RER - ANA RN —IEE R B ZET
) BHSARARSUNEZRERAS %Y
BE  MMNHAKEREBEZER  RAKXA
AIREREMZEEAEEE R TR AR
ZATEE BB - 2E - REN - WER SR
B - ZEFEAFEAE BB T FHH—&F
B TR -_Z——F+—_HA+HBEH -

R-ZZBZNFRALH SETSHEREZ
FEMARRESRRAEEABRE SR
72,400,000 L @Ak 2 ERE - BEEFIB W
T



25 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

() The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year are
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25 LURREEZRBRS @)

()  FARBBREZGERRMEHDT

as follows:
Number of Contractual
options Vesting conditions life of options
BREHE 5B IR BRE 2SN
Options granted to directors: 26,100,000 One third on each of the 3 years
BTESRZERE : grant date, first and second =
—on 7 May 2008 anniversaries of grant date
——ZEENFRALH MEARER A - 5iE
KE _{EEFR
FR=H7—
Options granted to employees: 46,300,000 One third on each of the 3 years
BT EE 2 EIRHE : grant date, first and second =
—on 7 May 2008 anniversaries of grant date
——ZEENFRALH MEARER A - 5iE
KE _{EEFR
FR=HZ—
Total share options 72,400,000
Bl R

(i)~ The number and weighted average exercise prices of options are as

(i) BB BB RINEFIOITEEMNT

follows:

Weighted average Number of
exercise price options
INEEFII1TEE fEfR SN B

$

JT
Outstanding at 1 January 2008 RZZZNF—HA—RB 2RI = =
Granted during the year FAEM 0.5 72,400,000
Outstanding at 31 December 2008 R_ZEZENF+=-_A=+—HK7TE 0.5 72,400,000
Exercisable at 31 December 2008 RZZZENF+=ZA=+—HBAl1{E = =

The options outstanding at 31 December 2008 had an exercise price of $0.5

and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.35 years.

R-BTBNFE+= A =+—B 2R THEERE
ZITEE A0S - NEFH TGS LHR A
2.35%F
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25 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(iif)

Fair value of options granted during the year and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for options granted are
measured by reference to the fair value of options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the services received is measured based
on the Black-Scholes model. The contractual life of the option is used

as an input into this model.

25 LI

(iif)

BEZROXZ @

FRE M BEEZ A HERERR

B BB A A R P AR 7S5 2 X P E
D2EMERHBREZATEE M
FERRTG 2 X FEPARA 71 52 — &F FR A H
EERAGE - BREZSNFHAE
MK ZFTEER

2008
—EENF
Fair value at measurement date REtEE B2 A TE $0.1439
Share price at measurement date REtEEH Zﬁx%‘i $0.4850
Exercise price TIE(E $0.5000
Expected volatility (expressed as a weighted TR B (DAMA 1 72 — T AT ER#EE
average volatility used in the modelling under BHEA P Z e
the Black-Scholes model) TR IETRIE) 60%
Expected option life (expressed as a weighted TRt AREF B (UAMR 152 — AT AR AR
average life used in the modelling under the HEEBEERAMAZ
Black-Scholes model) INRETES FHIRE) 3 years
Expected dividends TEHARR B Nil
Risk free interest rate 2 o B 1) == 2.1%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the options), adjusted
for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially affect

the fair value estimate.

Options were granted under a market condition. The share options can
only be exercised when the market price of the shares of the Company
is $1.2 per share or above. This condition has been taken into account

in the grant date fair value measurement.

TR 5 AR 00 08 IR IR AR 201
%iﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁgé%ﬁﬁEVﬁ%

DRESRZ AR ER ORER
Wﬁﬁﬁoﬁﬂﬁéﬁ#@EZ%~ﬁ
% TBHABRZEDTHRELE
AT -

BREDETARL - REEARFZ
BB RERI2ZTHALEZERT
A AT RAE - Rt E BN R
B2 RFER - B RUCREE -
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26 Share capital 26 A
The Company
AT
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
ZEREE &5
‘000 $'000
TFh& Tt
Ordinary shares of $0.10 each: SREEI0TZEBR
Authorised: ZEE -
At 31 December 2007 and 2008 REZETLER_TT)N\F
+=—A=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITREE -
At 1 January 2007 R=_FZ+tF—HF—H 2,477,146 247,715
Shares repurchased (ii) B8 B R% A9 (i) (14,508) (1,451)
Shares issued upon exercise of FE1TE Al AR R
convertible notes MmEEIT 2R H 1,270,000 127,000
At 31 December 2007 and 2008 REZZEZLERZTT)\F
+=-—A=+—H 3,732,638 373,264

(i) The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as (i)

declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at

meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard

to the Company's residual assets.

(i) During 2007, the Company repurchased 14,508,000 own ordinary (if)

shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at a weighted

average price of $0.545 per share. The repurchased shares were

cancelled and accordingly the issued capital of the Company was

reduced by the nominal value of these shares. The premium paid on

the repurchase of the shares of $6,465,000 was charged to share

premium.

TR A AR RBEN K 2 &Y
RE  WERNRARAGZE LRER—
ERERR - B EBERERR AFIER
BEHEARFMA -

R-ZZZTLF  ARAARBEHERS
BT/ PR 72 &) & [B1 78 A 7]14,508,000/% & 38
A% - nAEF B A EAR0.5455T © BEEl 2
B&fn B EdH - WHRARRAE BEITRAF
R Z SR 2 EE o BB AR5 B
T 1 2 %4 186,465,0007T B 57 A% 19 4 (8 Bk
IR o
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27 Reserves 27 f#1E

The Company

ARATH
Share-hased

compensation
Share  Translation Capital reserve  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve R4 losses Total
B RE ERfRE ERGRE Hie E5 EH
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 §'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr T Fr
At 1 January 2007 RZZZT+F-A—H 442,914 156 41,856 - (129,583) 355,343
Shares repurchased (note 26) BERL (Hit26)

— premium paid —BfE(E (6,465) - = = - (6,465)
Exercise of convertible notes AFATRRRE 274,028 - (41,856) - = 22172
Exchange difference EREE - 156 - - - 156
Profit for the year EREA - - - - 110,235 110,235
At 31 December 2007 RZZZ+F+ZA=1—H 710,477 312 = - (19,348) 691,441
At 1 January 2008 RZZE\$-A—-H 710,477 312 = - (19,348) 691,441
Fauity settled share - based transaction NEREEZRINR S - - - 6,182 - 6,182
Exchange difference EHREE - (857) - - - (857)
Loss for the year FAEE - - - - (8,790) (8.790)
At 31 December 2008 RZZENF+ZA=1—-H 710,477 (545) = 6,182 (28,138) 687,976

The Company's reserves available for distribution to its shareholders
comprise share premium and accumulated losses which in aggregate
amounted to approximately $682 million as at 31 December 2008 (2007:
$691 million). Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for paying distributions or
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum and
articles of association and provided that immediately following the payment
of distribution or dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
articles of association, distributions shall be payable out of the profits or

other reserves, including the share premium account, of the Company.

AAR AR T RE 2 EERERORERR
FHER - RZTENFF_A=+—H&6HL
6.82B (=TT LF : 6.91EL) - RIEFAE
ﬁ%@ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ‘$%ﬂ2kﬁ%%ﬂ
FREDIRSIERREIRE TIRR - EZDIER
IR BAFA A REMERARERMA 28
E - MAEZEDRRRERSE - AREMD
BER BB EBBREPERIBER - BEARQ

Al REEBERMAA - AND A2 HIRER &
Pk E M iEE - BIEARR A 2R EERTIE
BY o
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Reserves (continued)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital structure on
the basis of a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net
debt as total debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings),
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital is calculated as shareholders’ funds

plus net debt or minus net cash.

During 2008, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from 2007, was
to maintain the net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at an appropriate level.
In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to

shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-capital ratio was (0.33) and 0.17 as at 31 December 2007
and 2008 respectively.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally

imposed capital requirements.

Financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group's business. These risks are limited by the Group's

financial management policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored

on an ongoing basis.
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RiE
BRAEE

ZISEEZ%ZK AEREERAURERER

HEEE R AMEEEFERRREMHD
#&&I‘»ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ}\ik tME - WRFRFEEZ

BARRBIAREEARRA -

BITEIER -5 - AEEENFEEHEARL
RREEERHENRERE - ghit - NEERE
BE(BEFTEERREE) IR RAEEE
BEHAEFARE RATHBRRESINFAE
PRI R -

REZENF - AEEZKRENR_—_ZTLF

5 RAEREF A A RKHRBERAR AR
HEKRF - BT HISHRBLD) - AEEATRE
ABIRNTRERZRESHE - BITHAR RO
BRA TR - BEEFERBRERHEEEAR
DB o

R-BZLFR—
FRBHREARLAID

ZENF+A=+—8H"
5Bl 45(0.33) 20.17 ©

AR R e E AR AT F B A RIS B SR
Mz BARFRE o
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28 Financial instruments (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continved)

(i)

(ii)

Trade and other receivables

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30 days
from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more
than 1 month past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the balance
sheet, the Group has a certain concentration of credit risk as
13% (2007: 20%) of the total trade and other receivables was
due from the Group's five largest customers.

Deposits with banks

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits
with financial institutions that meet the established credit rating
or other criteria. Given these high credit ratings, management
does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group has a certain concentration
of credit risk as 80% (2007: 73%) of total cash and cash
equivalents were deposited with a financial institution in PRC.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet
after deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the Group or
the Company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 16.

28 €@ T A »)

(a) EERBR @)

(i)

(ii)

B 5 & E MW RIA
REZREMEEFEANS - HR
AEERBEE TEESHE TP
BEETEREER G o ERE
SR P BE R MERRER LR
VR TRBE S - X E R P RO (E A
AR FERE P LS MERBRER
AR - B S RUKGIARE R
BE HL0EREE - EHAM
BaH—EANK EzEeR - BIE
2HREEMARRT I BERE
& - AEFE—RITGRESKIE
Fiam o

AEEFEEZEERR  TE2X
BEEPZENFEMEE - EPK
EREZTERBER ZESRARIT
FEFERR  MEFERERD -
REEH  AEENAREPHE
2R EMERRIA1% (Z 2L
F:20%) WARX-ERENE
E&RfER -

RITFR

R BB K 7R TN & BEE
SRR RREA G2 SRR -
REIEMARZ ZEERE - ENE
SR wERERATSEAE
MRZHEFEEFHEE

R=ZEN\F+=A=+-R &
SERekBcEBEEEHARE
80% (=TT LF : 13%) TN —
RALAH B & B - AR —
ERENEESEFRER -

EREERREEEERER LA
IR EREERSRERBERZ
FREE - AEEIR A EHEFE
BHER - AEBREBRAR 7%
REERR -

HihBBASEEmE RE S REA
BUHEELEFEERRZ 2L EE
FIRAKIFE16 ©



28 Financial instruments (continved)

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, including the short term investment
of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the parent Company’s board when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Company's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and readily realisable marketable securities to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the
balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and

the earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to pay:
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28 £ T B

(b) EEREB MR

AEBEBETZENEEERAEETE
BReZAEME BREETEHRSAR
REREREFUNERNEARSTR
e S BRI EEE <& TREKF
K ABSBARERES ZHE - AR
AleBRABEPERERRBHZRE
MFER - AEREEREHRSFHEER
AN ERR 2B S AEREEH
REMRESERK -

THRILARERART 2 T AMES
RABREE AR TAOBHRFE -
BRERADRURRSR(BERED
E2HE  RMRFBHEBAREYE
A AEZFIERE) RAEERARF]
SEETERT AHHE

The Group RE
2008 2007
= i TRtk
More than More than
Total Within ~ More than 2 years Total Within-~ More than 1 years
contractual Tyear  1yearbut but less contractual Tyear  Tyearbut hut less
undiscounted oron less than than undiscounted oron less than than
cshflow  demand 2years 5 years cash flow demand 1 years 5 years
Grying  AHAE  -ER ikl BB Gy ARRE —FA i it
amount  BELHE Ak -£@ M anount~ RELR ik —£ MER
REE it BAR  ORRE  OREE HEE Ghl BAR ORME OREE
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 $1000 §000 §1000 §1000 §000 §'000
T T T i i T i i T T
Bank loans RTER 30176 410,715 17,635 112,65 280424 213,584 266,120 13920 13920 138,280
Other payables AtbERz0E 79,381 79,381 19,381 - - 39721 39727 39717 - -
Amount due to arelated company ER-FEERRE - - - - - 1,505 1505 1505 - -
419557 490,09 97,016 112,65 280424 54836 30731 5,172 13920 138,280
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28 Financial instruments (continved)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

28 @I B

(b) E€AREN MR BR 2

The Company NS
2008 2007
== JIt3 e 3
More than More than
Total Within ~ More than 2 years Total Within-~ More than 1 years
contractual Tyear  1yearbut but less contractual Tyear  Tyearbut hut less
undiscounted oron less than than undiscounted oron less than than
cash flow demand 2years 5 years cash flow demand 1 years 5 jears
Garrying A0S -ER bl BB g ADRE 4R i) iz
amount  RBEER Ak -£@ M ot BEER ik —Ff MER
REE fit BAR  ORRE  OREE HEE Ghl BAE ORWE OREE
§'000 §'000 §'000 §1000 §1000 §000 §000 §1000 §000 §'000
i T T i i T i i i T
Other payables HAERTE 1,175 1175 1175 - - 1084 1084 1084 - -
1175 1175 1175 = = 1,084 1,084 1,084 = =

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from long-term

borrowings. The Group's long-term borrowings at 31 December 2008

were issued at variable rates and therefore expose the Group to cash

flow interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by

management is set out in (i) below.

() FIZ=E B

AEBZFERBREERERBEE -
AEBR-_ZZNF+ZA=+—H
ZERBEERIZDHEFR - Am<SA
SEEHReRAERR - AEEZF
ERORAEREEEWERIIN T XE)
IH o
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(XETIT)
28 Financial instruments (contined) 28 €T R
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) F=mb
(i) Interest rate profile () FIEBLR
The Group The Company
P | NG|
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ZINE “ETEE “EENE bS8 3
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate fate rate fate
BRA= ERA= BRAE ERFI=
% $'000 % §'000 % $'000 % $'000
% Tr % T % Tr % T
Fixed rate instruments: EEIA:
Time deposits TEHER 0.8% 5732 2.0% 11,262 0.8% 5,732 2.0% 9,202
5132 11,262 5,732 9,202
Variable rate instruments: BFEIA:
Cash at bank RITER 1.0%-15% 224,077 15%-2.0% 311,853 0.5% - 1.0% 1,737 15%-2.0% 1,770
Bank loans RITER 6.8%  (340,176) 70%  (213,584) - - - -
(116,099) 98,269 1,731 1,770
Total instruments TA#E (110,367) 109,531 7,469 10,972

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2008, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits by approximately $905,000
(2007: increase/decrease by $898,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate
risk for both derivative and non-derivative financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase or
decrease represents management's assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period until the next
annual balance sheet date. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2007.

(i) BREESHT

R_ZEENF+_A=+—H" &
FBEHEMEERARERTENE
R AR AR R RS0,
L—EET D RRL A
SEZBRBERET R R EF L
905,0007C( =T ZH4F : #4018
41>898,0007T) °

A ERSREDTRENEKEHE
NEEEBEAMEE - YEBAR
LI a% B PTE S 2R B 0T 4 REDT A
SRTAZHEER —BEFE
M ADEEEBHEE T —EF
EREE B R 2 F R g A 1R &
ZHE - ZEELFNDTIRAR
ZEAEHELT o
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28 Financial instruments (continved)

(d) Currency risk

(1)

(i)

Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through rental
income that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which they relate.
The currency giving rise to this risk are primarily United States

dollars.

Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of other trade receivables and payables held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to address short-term

imbalances.

All the Group's borrowings are denominated in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loan. Given this,
management does not expect that there will be any significant

currency risk associated with the Group’s borrowings.

28 €RT A »)

(d) EFERE

(i)

(i)

INER 5

AEBEEHNUZSZLEERXRBY
REEBUIN 2 EEIIEZHE KA
MAFREEERR - BREHRE R
ZEBEZRET -

BHEREERAE

ENAEREB 2 EE NI
BHRE 2 BB 5 R B 5
B ASEEAESERNEHANS
TR URBEXRE ARE R
& RRFTESMERE—EE
RMIEE ©

REBZEEHAERERZEE
ZEEEEEREA - Fit - BEEEY
TEPAEEZ EESMEEME
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28 Financial instruments (continved)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ifi)  Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at the balance
sheet date to currency risk arising from forecast transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other

than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
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28 @I B

(d)

E¥E B 2)
(i) BELHHEEESR

TRINHAEERAE B EHE NI
BRERNEEBUINZERTIE
ZIEARGROEREENEEM
ELEZERRARFS -

The Group rEH
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
ShEE LB (A T 5 R)

2008 2007

—EE)N\F ZERETAF

United United

States States

Dollars Dollars

‘000 '000

ES R ErxTT

Trade and other receivables Z 5 K& H e RIE 647 1,505
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReFEER 16,497 28,868
Overall exposure 28 7 By 17,144 30,373

(e) Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2008 and 2007.

The fair value of bank loans are estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates for

similar financial instruments.

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
bank deposits, trade and other payables and amount due to a related

company are not materially different from their carrying amounts.

(e)

AT

EERTAZARERERER —ZTF
NEE—ZZ+F+_RA=+—HZA
FELEBARTE o

RITERNRTFEDBRAKRESRER
BUSBMTANRITHENETREE
REMHE -

RekBReSEEAR BHREMER
BIE - RITER féf%&,ﬁ\‘rﬁlﬂ’éﬁm
MEN—RAERRFIAZAFEER
HE EEEETEIEEKTH ®
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29 Operating lease arrangements

(a)

The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in

respect of land and buildings, which fall due as follows:

29 KREHELHE
(a) AEBEREEA

REER  AEBRBEIAHEHEZ L
RETFREVEAIN ZRRKERE
AEZBHMBMT

The Group
rEHE

2008 2007
—BENF —TTLHF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Within one year —FR 5,481 4,378
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_ZERF(EREMFREEAN) 800 3,313
6,281 7,691

(b)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
its warehouses, office premises and directors’ quarters. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of two years with fixed rentals. None

of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group as lessor

The Group leases out certain dock and storage facilities under

operating leases.

Rental and storage income earned during the year was approximately
$153 million (2007: $150 million). The leases are negotiated for a
lease term of 1 to 20 years. None of the leases includes contingent

rentals.

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are receivables as follows:

(b)

REMENREASBENZEE -
REPEREEEE2HE - BHTIIR
R AME c FHETHER  HRES
TE - IEHOBERENAES

AEBESHEA

AEERBEERELAE THARE

FANATHBR 2z EE REFRAL A3
BR(ZZEZTLF 1508m) - ET
RB—E_TFZFHETER - %5
HEHEAENAHE o

AEERBEIAREZECEHERKZ
ARFEHS @R



29 Operating lease arrangements (continued)

(b) The Group as lessor (continued)
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(LETTIIT)
9 REHEERH @

(b) XEBEHBEBAA @

The Group
rEE

2008 2007
—ERENF —ETLF
$'000 $'000
Frx T
Within one year —FR 123,240 112,579
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_ZERF(HEMERELEAN) 379,913 345,118
More than five years HBBAF 1,143,941 1,163,183
1,647,094 1,620,880

At the balance sheet date, certain of the above future non-cancellable
operating leases receivables from year 2010 to year 2024 of
$1,475,683,000 (2007: $1,389,791,000) were pledged against the
banking facilities granted by a bank to a subsidiary of the Group (note
22).

30 Capital commitments

At 31 December 2008, the Group had capital expenditure contracted for but
not provided in the financial statements in respect of acquisition of port and
storage facilities amounted to $82,494,000 (2007: $215,966,000).

At 31 December 2008, the Group had capital expenditure not contracted
for but approved by the board and not provided in the financial statements
in respect of terminal development and acquisition of storage facilities

amounted to approximately $390 million (2007: $369 million).

REEH  BRBAA R R EHE
BARRERFER  EF T —TFE=
TN 2 KRR FEWRIAA1,475,683,000
(=TT :1,389,791,000T) * EfE
A—RBTMANEE —RHE A RR LR
FTRVE 2 AR @ (i E22) -

30 EAEIE

RZZETNFT_A=+—H RrEEHEE
Y0 R AT F e (e B AT A R M IS ik

s 2 AR & 582,494,000t ( T+
£ 1 215,966,0007T) °

RZZEFN\E+—A=1+—0  AEEZZE
WHERBERFREMIERTOBEESSH
BEERARUBREBEZEAAZ G LN A
3.90B (=TT L5 : 3.69(87T) °
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31 Material related party transactions and 31 BEAZEARZ R &R

balances
During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group entered into the HE-TTHLF+-_A=T—HIEFER ' &K
following significant transactions with related parties: SHEEFHABATERRS
(a) Related parties (a) BAEES
The Group
REE
2008 2007
Nature of —EENF —ETAF
Name of party transactions $'000 $'000
B 218 RHEME Fr T
Vand Petro-Chemicals Interest paid or B ke
payable on AR EIEF S
convertible notes (note) (Hiat) - 1,944
Note: Interest paid was charged at 1% on the principal amount of et - ENFETDIRTRBREREAS S
the convertible notes. As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, no BI%WR - RZZEZENFR=F
interest is due to Vand Petro-Chemicals. Z+FE+_A=+—H #MEE
{Vand Petro—Chemicals 2 Fl| 8. °
Vand Petro-Chemicals is under common control by a director of Vand Petro—Chemicals;& & 78 A &)
the Company. —REFHRAEGHIZ QA
(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) TEEEEBAEMS
Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts paid FTEEEREEAEMEREINAQRE
to the Company's directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the E(RWEFIRB)RETEREFHEE (R
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: MEE8IREE ) 2 £ 78 « #ANWT :
2008 2007
—EENEF —TTLF
$'000 $'000
F FIT
Short-term employee benefits EHESRA 5,663 7,050
Post-employment benefits BER 2R A 114 11
Equity settled share-based payment AR AE 2 RIDZ 2,178 -

7,955 7,161
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Immediate and ultimate controlling
party

At 31 December 2008, the directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Vand Petro-Chemicals, which
is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce

financial statements available for public use.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The Group's financial condition and results of operations are sensitive to
accounting methods, assumptions and estimates that underlie the preparation
of the financial statements. The Group bases the assumptions and estimates
on historical experience and on various other assumptions that the Group
believes to be reasonable and which form the basis for making judgements
about matters that are not readily apparent from other sources. On an on-
going basis, management evaluates its estimates. Actual results may differ

from those estimates as facts, circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other
uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity of
reported results to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors to be
considered when reviewing the financial statements. The principal accounting
policies are set forth in note 1. The Group believes the following critical
accounting policies involve the most significant judgements and estimates

used in the preparation of the financial statements.

Impairments

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the non-current assets at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. When indication of impairment is identified, management
prepares discounted future cash flow to assess the differences between the
carrying amount and recoverable amount and provides for impairment loss.
Any change in the assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts would
increase or decrease in the provision of impairment loss and affect the

Group's net asset value.
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BEERBRERDT

RZZEZNFF+ZA=+—H EEFREA
RNEE®EE R &KZZER A RVand Petro-
Chemicals » R EBELEFS ML o thE
BISRIUTBEREARDREE -

SRR &

AEBWF BN R SERE - EXREIMTE
BROGE TR BRRMEFAZE - A5E
BIRKIBERE L EREHNRRMGT RSE
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FoERREVRENSREE  BERER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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33 Accounting estimates and judgements 33 Sttt R A )

(continued)

Impairments (continued)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts is assessed and provided based
on the management'’s regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of
collectibility. A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the directors
when assessing the credit worthiness and past collection history of each

individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss would affect the net

profit in future years.

Depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be
recorded during any reporting period. The depreciation expense for future

periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Lease classification

Leases are classified as operating leases if the duration of the arrangement
are for less than a major part of the facilities" useful lives and the present
value of the minimum payments under the arrangement does not amount to
at least substantially all of the fair value of the facilities. The classification of
leases may change if there are significant changes from previous estimates
of the facilities" useful lives and the present value of the minimum payments.
The Group uses all readily available information in estimating the useful lives

and present value of minimum payments.

Provision for taxation

Judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There
are transactions and calculations for which ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The final outcomes are

subject to uncertainties and resulting liabilities may exceed provisions.
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34 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued
a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2008 and which have not been

adopted in these financial statements.

The directors have confirmed that the Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these amendments, new standards and

new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application.

So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and financial

position.

In addition, the following developments are expected to result in amended
disclosures in the financial statements, including restatement of comparative

amounts in the first period of adoption:
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETTIIT)

34 CHEMERBE_ZZNF
+_H:+—E¢$Fﬁ$
ERZABET ~ FET ERI R
BragEm g

BEAMBHRTIEER  BESHLSE
MMZIRIER] ~ M ERLRE  BREE=
ZENF+-A=+—BHIEFERKER  TF
RETNN AT R -

EECHR - ASBEEEEZSER - E
ARFRERERERYEENERZEE -

ESRA - FMREET - FEARRETA
T ARM 2 EERARIBIHR - ENE
ARE -

BESN - ATMERT M E R TR & B BUE B 15
BRAZHEER  SREEERAHRE
RS

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

RT5 Bz 2 &%

Z e BN

HKFRS 8 Operating segments 1 January 2009
BB I RS RS 85k BESER —EENF-A—H
HKAS 1 (revised 2007) Presentation of financial statements 1 January 2009
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A FYHEEE

Year ended 31 December
BEF=A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETTIR)
Year ended 31 December
BETZA=t+-HALFE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—ZTNE —ZTHE —ZTRF “ETHEF “EENE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T Tr
RESULTS ES |
Turnover EEW 192,184 201,802 166,936 160,286 165,166
Profit before taxation BB A& Al 134,038 110,740 161,695 78,302 72.490
Taxation A (9,699) (7,631) (13,003) (6,986) (8,972)
Profit attributable to equity ARAIRE
shareholders of the Company FE(E &R 114,769 92,569 134,218 64,014 56,395
Profit attributable to minority SRR ER
interests FEME R 9,570 10,540 14,474 7,302 7,123
Profit for the year PO 124,339 103,109 148,692 71,316 63,518
At 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
“ZIME “TTHE ZTTRE ZTTtEF “EENE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERER
Total assets BERT 897,821 734,638 661,207 915,967 1,097,930
Total liabilities BREAH 1,499,543 818,056 664,996 471,291 559,274
Minority interest DYRRER 8,513 19,371 23,118 31,140 40,291
Total equity attributable to equity ~ ANABIRREL
shareholders of the Company FoU: 3y (610,235) (102,789) (26,907) 413,536 498,365

Note: Under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, the acquisition At © REBEE L BHRM 2 @5HRA - K =ZZZ

of the entire interest in Union Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company Limited FH-—ANBERBAEOMETARAA
("UPC") in December 2004 has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition. (rﬁ’éﬁﬁa‘—:ftj)i\*ﬁﬁgé—%E?ﬂi@ﬂ%—Iﬁ&
Accordingly, the above financial information represents those of the UPC Wl o HUL - Rl 2 B AR T iEs R A

Group. EEBEER -
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